
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Mayor Frederick Becker III – 2015    Mayor Pro Tem Janet Critz – 2017 
Town Council Members 

 

Valerie Coffey – 2015 ~ Jerry Countryman – 2017 ~ Lundeen Cureton – 2015  
 

Peggy Neill – 2015 ~ Melody LaMonica – 2017  
 

 

 

Town of Mineral Springs   
Mineral Springs Town Hall   

3506 S Potter Road ~ Mineral Springs 
Town Council 

Regular Meeting  
February 12, 2015 ~ 7:30 PM    

 

Agenda 
 

1. Opening  
 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered and the Pledge of Allegiance will be 
recited. 

 
2. Public Comments 

 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest to them 
during this ten-minute period; there is a three (3) minute time limit on individuals signed up to speak.  

 
3. Consent Agenda 

 

A. January 8, Regular Meeting Minutes and January 20, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes 
B. December 2014 Tax Collector’s Report 
C. December 2014 Finance Report 

 
4. Consideration of a Resolution (R-2015-01) in Memory and Honor of Mr. Robert 

Neill 
 

The council will consider approving Resolution 2015-01 in memory and honor of Mr. Robert Neill.  Mr. 
Neill served on the Mineral Springs Planning Board and Board of Adjustment from 2001 to 2013.    

 
5. Consideration of Adopting the Revised 2014 Emergency Operations Plan 
 

Union County Emergency Management Coordinator Donald Moyé will request that the council adopt the 
revised 2014 Emergency Operations Plan. 

 
6. Consideration of a Resolution (R-2015-03) to Adopt the Cabarrus Stanly Union 

Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

The council will consider approving Resolution 2015-03 to adopt the Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 

7. Union County Board of Education Liaison Leslie Boyd  
 

Ms. Leslie Boyd will introduce herself as the Mineral Springs liaison for the Board of Education and 
make a brief presentation. 

 
8. Discussion of the Proposed Community Center and Downtown Park 

 

The council will discuss the proposed Community Center and Downtown Park. 
 
9. Consideration of a Resolution (R-2015-02) for the North Carolina Department of 

Transportation Division of Highways Request for Addition to State Maintained 
Secondary Road System   

 

http://www.mineralspringsnc.com/


www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 2  

The council will consider approving Resolution 2015-02 for the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation Division of Highways request for addition to State Maintained Secondary Road System in 
the Copper Run Subdivision. 

 
10. Consideration of Participating in 2016 Urban Archery Season 

 

The council will consider renewing the town’s participation in the Urban Archery for 2016 Season; the 
dates are January 9, 2016 through February 13, 2016. 
 

11. Discussion and Consideration of Additional Plantings at the Pump Station 
Property 

 

The council will discuss and consider their options for additional plantings at the Mineral Springs Pump 
Station on Highway 75.  

 
12. Consideration of a Purchasing a Steeplechase Advertisement 
 

The council will consider authorizing the purchase of a Steeplechase advertisement in the 2015 
Steeplechase brochure. 

 
13. Staff Updates    

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town.  
  
14. Other Business 

 
15. Adjournment 

 
   

http://www.mineralspringsnc.com/


 

Minutes Book 16 59 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

Town of Mineral Springs 
Town Hall   

3506 S. Potter Road 
Town Council 

Regular Meeting / Public Hearing  
January 8, 2015 ~ 7:30 PM  

  
 

Minutes Draft  
 

 
 

The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Regular Session 
and Public Hearing at the Mineral Springs Town Hall, Mineral Springs, North Carolina, at 7:30 
p.m. on Tuesday, January 8, 2015. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Mayor Pro Tem Janet Critz, Councilman Jerry 

Countryman, Councilwoman Valerie Coffey, Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton, 
Councilwoman Melody LaMonica, Councilwoman Peggy Neill, Town 
Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks and Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector 
Janet Ridings.  

 
Absent: Attorney Bobby Griffin. 
 
Visitors: Charles Bowden, Mike Devine and Suzanne Devine. 
 
With a quorum present Mayor Frederick Becker called the Regular Town Council Meeting of 
January 8, 2015 to order at 7:34 p.m.     
 
1.  Opening 

• Councilwoman Neill delivered the invocation. 
• Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
2. Public Hearing – Conditional Use Permit (C14-01) 

• Mayor Becker opened the Conditional Use Permit (C14-01) Public Hearing at 7:35 
p.m. and explained that this type of public hearing was a quasi-judicial hearing; the 
witnesses are sworn in to give testimony.  It is a more formal process than a 
normal rezoning or any other thing where the public hearing is more just 
commentary; therefore, the staff, the applicant and anybody else who expects to 
speak will be sworn in to give testimony.  The council can ask questions, staff will 
present an overview of the application and the applicant will give the actual details 
of the presentation for what they are asking to do.  This public hearing being quasi-
judicial, the council will be looking for evidence pro or con that’s factual and 
testamentary in nature.  The Findings of Fact that the council will be looking for are 
that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety; that it meets 
the required conditions; that it will not substantially injure the value of the adjoining 
properties; and that it is in harmony with the area and with the land development 
plan.  These are the type of criteria that the council is looking to address in order to 
approve this Conditional Use Permit.  The evidence and the testimony would have 
to be either leading toward making that conclusion or saying that the conclusion 



 

Minutes Book 16 60 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

can’t be made for some reason and why it doesn’t meet it.  The council is looking 
for factual evidence. 

• Mayor Becker asked if there would be any council member who had a conflict that 
had been involved with the process before.  Councilwoman Coffey responded that 
she would have to recuse herself in light of the fact that she serves on the planning 
board and has heard this and made a decision.  Mayor Becker asked if 
Councilwoman Coffey had a pre-set feeling on it based on her votes at the 
planning board.  Councilwoman Coffey responded at this point for the public 
hearing, as well as the item #6 (consideration of the use), she will have a seat out 
front.  Mayor Becker asked if the council would need to approve her recusal based 
on cause. 

• Councilwoman Neill made a motion to allow Councilwoman Coffey to excuse 
herself based on the conflict and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously as follows:   

 
   Ayes:  Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  

Nays:  None 
 

• Mayor Becker swore in Mike Devine, Suzanne Devine, Charles Bowden and Vicky 
Brooks. 

• Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks presented that Mike and Sue Devine have 
submitted an application for a Conditional Use Permit for a barn, which is 2,500 
square feet and which, by our ordinance (Article 5 – Table of Uses), requires a 
Conditional Use Permit.  They further want to have 2,500 square feet of living 
quarters above the barn, which also goes with the conditional use process.  Ms. 
Brooks asked to submit the application as evidence in this hearing.  Ms. Brooks 
also noted that the planning board had reviewed this and has recommended 
approval of it on the conditions that there is some kind of fire suppression system in 
the living quarters of the barn, that there is no storage of hay (other than what is 
being fed to the horses in the barn) and that the zoning administrator do an annual 
inspection to make sure they are compliant with our ordinance and the conditional 
use permit.  Councilwoman Critz asked Ms. Brooks to remind her about the other 
conditional use permit that was done with these same conditions.  Ms. Brooks 
clarified that Councilwoman Critz was referring to the other barn that we have in 
town that has living quarters above it.  Councilwoman Critz responded correct.  Ms. 
Brooks concurred that it was a caretaker quarters and reminded the council that 
the town had changed the definition of caretaker quarters to allow the property 
owner to also be in those living quarters.  The conditions were the same [on the 
existing one] as the planning board has recommended for this one.  

• Suzanne Devine and Michael Devine introduced themselves.  Ms. Devine 
explained that they owned the property and are the folks that want to live in a barn 
house.  They have 41 acres and there’s a back pasture and a front pasture.  
Basically, in the back pasture they want to have their home and also have their 
horses.  Ms. Devine loves barns; she thinks they are beautiful.  “When I am in them 
I am happy and would like to be close to the animals”.  Originally, they were going 
to build a house and a barn, but searching for ideas they came up with…. Ms. 
Devine mentioned that this has been a very long process; they have been buying 
this land in pieces for about the last 15 years, so it’s been like a 15 year dream.  



 

Minutes Book 16 61 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

They came up with this idea, just because she thought barns were so beautiful and 
it’s a good use of the space to not have a footprint of a house and a footprint of a 
barn.  It will have seven stalls downstairs and the upstairs will have three bedrooms 
(their daughter’s room, their room and a guest room), a big open living room, dining 
room and a kitchen.  It is just simple living space.  Another thing the Devines want 
to do is take care of the animals and have a garden (“grow our own food”); kind of 
simplify things.  Ms. Devine pointed out (on the plat) where they were putting the 
driveway (running up the side) and the square in the middle of the property is Sadie 
Austin.  The Devines have known Ms. Austin for years, after buying the initial 16 
acres from Ms. Austin; the Devines bought most of the rest of the property from 
her.  Ms. Austin is somebody the Devines know and get along with very well.  Ms. 
Devine explained that Ms. Austin had written a letter if the council would like it; it 
says that she is not opposed to it, because she is kind of right smack in the middle 
of their property.  Ms. Devine stated that Ms. Austin has actually said that she is so 
excited, because her husband had always wanted horses running in that pasture, 
so she said “Ormond is going to look down and be so glad there’s horses back 
there”.  Mayor Becker stated that if Ms. Devine had written testimony she could 
submit it as an exhibit. 

• Mr. Devine explained that they did take the time and spoke with a company 
regarding a sprinkler system.  The Devines are totally on board with that.  It looked 
like something (at first) that was a big mystery, because he has never done that 
sort of thing, but in looking into it, it’s not a very complicated thing and the 
gentleman that Mr. Devine talked to is willing and able to come out here and do 
that for them.  As far as storing hay, they are going to have an outbuilding for hay, 
so they have taken all these things into consideration.  Mr. Devine reiterated what 
Ms. Devine had stated about this being in the process for a long time and stated 
that they have had a long time to plan it.  “We are not the first people to ever do 
this, there are a lot of people throughout the states that have done this, there’s not 
too many here in Union County, but there are a few around and we think it is an 
interesting way to go and we are up for it”,  Mr. Devine said.   

• Ms. Devine added that “it is going to be so cool”.  There are going to be more of 
them, so this way the council can go “alright another conditional use for living 
above the barn”.  Ms. Devine stated that was really it, unless anybody had any 
questions or there are more details that they should be providing. 

• Councilwoman Neill commented that she thought they had been very thorough.  
Councilwoman Cureton concurred.  Mayor Becker commented that the town is 
familiar with some of the factors that they are going to have to consider and how 
this project would mesh with that when it comes time to make that deliberation.  
The council can ask the Devines any specific questions right now.  When we close 
the hearing later on, we will leave it open for clarification by any of the participants 
that council can ask during the deliberation process, but otherwise, we would close 
the hearing after we get to the next speaker, which would be Mr. Bowden.  If the 
council had no questions, Mayor Becker would call Mr. Bowden forward.  
Councilwoman Critz commented and explained that she was originally on the 
planning board (when the zoning ordinance was originally formulated) and one of 
the reasons why they set barns at a conditional use permit was because they had a 
situation in the community where the boundaries were grossly abused, so they set 
it to not only protect that from happening again, but to allow this type of thing to be 



 

Minutes Book 16 62 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

permitted.  You want to be sure that the community isn’t harmed by things that are 
done (i.e. damage property values to those around them).  You also want to be 
sure that you leave yourself….., because throughout the years of multiple surveys, 
it is very clear that this community wants to maintain a rural atmosphere and 
Mineral Springs is looking for ways to be unique.  We are not Waxhaw, Wesley 
Chapel or Monroe; we are looking for ways to be unique and yet stay the same.  
Councilwoman Critz stated that this is a great way to do that and thanked the 
Devines for being so….  Mr. Devine responded that they appreciated that for sure; 
it is going to fit in and they have always felt like a good match for Mineral Springs.  
They have been out here for 15 years, so it kind of feels like this is already their 
home, even though they do live in Waxhaw.   

• Mayor Becker instructed the Devines to pass Ms. Austin’s letter on so that people 
could look at it and then it would be introduced in as evidence, since they don’t 
have Ms. Austin to testify.  Mr. Devine stated that she was home with the flu.   

• Mr. Charles Bowden - My name is Charles Bowden and I live about three miles 
away on Pleasant Grove Road.  My personal opinion.  Mayor Becker interrupted by 
saying that is not something that is legally….  Mr. Bowden continued – I’m for 
everybody being able to use their property the way they want to, generally 
speaking.  All right, that’s all I can say on that.  Part of my questions had already 
been addressed about Ms. Coffey; I was concerned about the conflict of interest.  I 
do believe we have another conflict of interest that wasn’t addressed and that’s Ms. 
LaMonica, her husband is shown to be on the planning board and well look at it – 
husband and wife are one.  Councilwoman LaMonica clarified that he was actually 
on the Board of Adjustment.  Mr. Bowden continued – I believe I saw it, well it 
might have been Adjustment, so he wouldn’t be involved.  You answered that 
question, strike that one.  I would also like to ask.  Ms. Brooks stated that Mr. 
LaMonica was on the planning board.  Councilwoman LaMonica responded is he 
on the planning board as well and then apologized, because she thought he was 
just on the Board of Adjustment as an alternate.  Councilwoman Critz stated that 
she thought this made it clear they have not talked about it.  Mr. Bowden 
responded clearly not.  Ms. Brooks added that Mr. LaMonica wasn’t in attendance 
at the meeting where this was addressed.  Mr. Bowden continued – I am just 
saying that, because I have picked up information from some of the neighbors 
there that may not be sure about it.  I am not sure that he showed up, so they had 
the opportunity, I guess it don’t matter.  I would also like to ask this question.  Is 
this personal horses or is this a rental stable.  Mayor Becker questioned whether or 
not the applicant could answer the question.  Mr. Bowden stated well it makes a 
difference.  Mayor Becker responded “I think so, yeah”.  Ms. Devine responded that 
their plan is to have a few horses of their own and then lease out a few stalls to 
friends.  Mr. Devine responded that it will be a seven stall barn, so it’s not an 
industrial; he didn’t want them to be concerned it is an industrial barn.  Mr. Bowden 
continued seven horses can give away quite a bit of waste.  Mr. Devine responded 
that there are 41 acres and there is a lot of pasture space; there is a lot of pasture 
space in the front and in the back, so there should be room for seven horses.  
Mayor Becker stated for the record, since the applicant may not have heard the 
question, “was the number of stalls and horses and it is a seven stall barn that’s 
being considered for this application”, just to place that on the record.  Mr. Bowden 
continued – I have one suggestion that you have a sprinkler system for the horses 



 

Minutes Book 16 63 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

also, because there has been some serious barn fires and a lot of horses were 
burned up, so maybe you are gone and the horses are there, if some fire and your 
horse are gone.  Other than that I didn’t realize it is going to be a hearing based on 
facts, I didn’t see that anywhere until I got here, but other than that I’d like to make 
one other statement then I’ll be quiet and you can do what you want and I didn’t 
realize you had already set a precedent with the other barn, which I guess is on 
McNeely Road, but suppose somebody comes up here and wants to put chickens 
under the barn or under the house.  I served in the Army in Germany and people 
had cows under the barn or under the house, the barns are under the houses.  This 
is back in the 60’s, imagine how that was.  So you know, I think you have set a 
precedent, you’ve already said it so.  Some people like chickens, some like pigs, 
everything you can think of – just a thought.  That’s all I can say.  

• Mayor Becker asked if anybody else who had not signed up wanted to be sworn in 
to make statements (testimonial commentary).  Ms. Devine gave Mayor Becker the 
letter from Sadie Austin.  Mayor Becker read aloud the letter from Ms. Austin as 
follows:  To Whom It May Concern: I am Sadie Austin of 4520 Raymond Austin 
Road in Mineral Springs.  My land adjoins Mike and Sue Devine.  I don’t object to 
them doing what they want to do.  It shouldn’t hurt my land.  I am sorry I can’t make 
it, I am trying to get rid of the flu; it’s not easy.  Sadie Austin.  Mayor Becker turned 
the letter over to the clerk and introduced it as a third item of evidence to go along 
with the application and the plat. 

• Councilwoman Critz stated that she thought it was clear by the number of stalls 
that they will have that it is going to be a personal endeavor.  Councilwoman Critz 
informed the Devines that Mineral Springs follows the county’s guidelines on the 
appropriate amount of land per animal, which is currently one acre per horse, so 
the Devine’s horses will have exceedingly abundant land.  These are things that 
are studied and set on a broader scale than the town has, so we use other people’s 
information/help/resources. 

• With no further commentary, Mayor Becker closed the public hearing at 7:57 p.m. 
with the understanding that the witnesses are still under oath at the time that the 
council deliberates and they can be asked for clarification if necessary. 

• Mayor Becker thanked everyone for their participation.                          
 
3. Public Comments 

• Charles Bowden – Pleasant Grove Road. 
 
4. Consent Agenda 

• Town Clerk Vicky Brooks noted that the December 30th minutes needed to be 
corrected on the first page (the with a quorum present line) – “December 18, 2014” 
should say “December 30, 2014”.   

• Councilman Countryman made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 
presented and corrected containing the following: 
 
A. December 11, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes, December 18, 2014 Special 

Meeting Minutes and December 30, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. November 2014 Tax Collector’s Report 
C. November 2014 Finance Report  
 
and Councilwoman Critz seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 



 

Minutes Book 16 64 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

  Ayes: Countryman, Coffey, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill 
Nays: None 
 

5. Consideration of Adopting the Revised 2014 Emergency Operations Plan 
• Mayor Becker asked Ms. Brooks if she had heard from Mr. Donald Moyé, who 

responded that she had not.  Mayor Becker explained that Mr. Moyé was here at 
the first December regular meeting to present the county plan, but we did not have 
a quorum.  Mayor Becker instructed Ms. Brooks to notify Mr. Moyé of the next 
available meeting, so that he can get here and present that plan.   

 
6. Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit (C14-01) Submitted by Mike and 

Suzanne Devine 
• Mayor Becker stated that the council will consider this permit with the thought in 

mind that they can ask Administrator Brooks, the applicant or even Mr. Bowden 
questions about the testimony that has been heard.  The council will have the 
Findings of Fact that are going to have to be made; however, there wasn’t a lot of 
testimony, but they certainly know what our ordinance calls for and what they as a 
reasonable person would see as things that may or may not endanger public health 
and safety.  Mayor Becker opened this item up for council discussion as they go 
through the Findings of Fact. 

 
Findings of Fact 

 
a. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where 

proposed and developed according to the submitted plan. 
 

Councilman Countryman made a motion to accept item “a” as acceptable with a 
positive yes that it will not endanger any public health or public safety and 
Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 

  
Based on there not being any testimony provided that in any way would 
demonstrate that this building would in any way endanger public health or safety of 
any individuals around.  
  
Based on this use anticipating people living in a house and horses living in a barn.  
We have people living in houses and haven’t seen any specific endangerments by 
those uses; this doesn’t seem any different from the uses that we have throughout 
the town, just combined into one.    

 
b. The use meets all required conditions and specifications. 

 
Councilwoman Critz made a motion to accept item “b”, it is clear by the 
information that we have been provided from the planning board, as well as the 
survey that they met all conditions required and specifications required by the 
Town of Mineral Springs and even have gone above and beyond at the request of 



 

Minutes Book 16 65 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

the planning board.  Mayor Becker asked the administrator if there were any other 
conditions of the Mineral Springs Zoning Ordinance that is not being met by this 
application that she was aware of.  Ms. Brooks responded no.  Councilman 
Countryman seconded the aforementioned motion by Councilwoman Critz.  The 
motion passed unanimously as follows:   
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 
 

Based on the information that was provided by the planning board, the survey and 
that the applicant has gone above and beyond at the request of the planning board. 
 
Based on there being no negatives from the zoning administrator.  

 
c. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property or 

the use is a public necessity. 
 

Councilwoman LaMonica made a motion and reiterated no substantial injury to 
the value of adjoining property or abutting property or the use is a public necessity. 
The use will not substantially injure the value of the adjoining property and based 
on everything that has been presented I would say the answer to that is yes it will 
not and based on the letter received from Mrs. Sadie Austin, she clearly is in 
agreement and comfort with the plans as they have been presented under the 
Conditional Use Permit.  Mayor Becker commented that Ms. Austin was clearly the 
closest property owner at 160 feet from the corner of the barn and he believed 
there was nobody else closer than 259 feet, so it is very far from its neighbors.  
Councilwoman Critz seconded the aforementioned motion by Councilwoman 
LaMonica.  The motion passed unanimously as follows:   
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 

 
 Based on everything that has been presented. 
 
 Based on the letter received from Mrs. Sadie Austin. 
 
d. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as 

submitted and approved, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be 
located and will be in general conformity with this Ordinance and the Town of 
Mineral Springs Land Development Plan. 
 
Councilwoman Critz made a motion in the affirmative, it is an asset to the Town 
of Mineral Springs as well as very much in conformity to the plan and ideals of this 
community.  Mayor Becker commented that based on his personal knowledge of 
the area, they have an area of some very large lots, there are some crops that are 
planted, there are some areas that are fenced, there are horses that he has seen, 
he has seen barns in the immediate area, there are similar uses and he hasn’t 
heard any testimony that we don’t, so he sees that as a contributing factor.  



 

Minutes Book 16 66 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

Councilwoman Cureton seconded the aforementioned motion by Councilwoman 
Critz.  The motion passed unanimously as follows:    

 
Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 
 

Based on this being an asset to the Town of Mineral Springs and it being in 
conformity to the plan and ideals of this community. 
 

e. Additional review criteria, as stated in the Ordinance, shall also be considered and 
addressed where required. 
 
Councilwoman Neill made a motion in the affirmative that condition is met based 
on no criteria and Councilwoman Cureton seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously as follows:  
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
  Nays: None 
 
Based on there not being any additional review criteria.  
 

f. Any deviation from the terms of this Ordinance will result in a project that is at least 
equal to or better than what would be accomplished under the strict application of 
this Ordinance. 

 
Councilwoman LaMonica made a motion in the affirmative as there are no 
deviations and Councilman Countryman seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously as follows: 
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 

 
 Based on there not being any deviations.  
 
g. Any deviation from the terms of this Ordinance will not adversely affect the right of 

other abutting or nearby property owners in any material manner. 
 

Councilwoman Neill made a motion in the affirmative as there are no deviations 
and will not adversely affect the right of any other abutting or properties based on 
staff testimony and Councilman Countryman seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously as follows: 
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 
 

Based on there not being any deviations.  
 

• Mayor Becker explained that the council has completed the seven findings, heard 
the testimony, seen the recommendations made by the planning board and heard 



 

Minutes Book 16 67 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

the applicant’s knowledge of those findings.  There were some conditions that the 
planning board recommended.  The council can grant the Conditional Use Permit 
without any of those new conditions, they may grant it using any of those 
conditions (all of them or other ones), or they can deny the permit, but they do have 
an affirmative finding in all of the Findings of Fact, which likely leads them to be 
able to make an affirmative vote, unless they want to impose some of these 
conditions.   

• Councilman Countryman made a motion that we accept this proposal in the 
affirmative and grant the permit based on those conditions that were proposed by 
the planning board, that obviously the facility have a sprinkling system, that hay 
may not be stored in the facility and that this facility is inspected on an annual basis 
by the planning administrator to ensure that it’s continually in compliance and 
Councilwoman LaMonica seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 

 
Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 
 

• Mayor Becker commented that he was looking forward to a few more horses and 
people to live with them in Mineral Springs.  Councilwoman Critz asked if they had 
a groundbreaking anticipation.  Mr. Devine responded as soon as possible.  Ms. 
Devine responded her guess was in a month or two.  Mayor Becker told them good 
luck and commented that it is a beautiful use on that property in terms of the type 
of land and the surrounding uses; it is a really exciting opportunity for promoting the 
agricultural and equestrian values of Mineral Springs.    

 
7. Finalizing Retreat Agenda Items 

• Mayor Becker asked the council if there was an additional strategy or agenda items 
that they want to present to staff to help finalize the retreat agenda that is 
scheduled for the 20th at the Rolling Hills Country Club.  Councilwoman Critz asked 
if the council ever came up with a timeframe of arrival.  Councilwoman LaMonica 
responded 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  Mayor Becker added that there will be light 
breakfast item (coffee, danish, fruit) and then a standard buffet lunch, which is the 
most economical.  Councilwoman Critz asked if we didn’t have a schedule of what 
we are going to be discussing and when.  Ms. Brooks responded no, that’s what 
the council needs to come up with; she and Mayor Becker will be meeting with Ms. 
Bennett who is waiting for input from the council so she can finalize the agenda.  
Mayor Becker asked the council if they had a “wish list” of specific areas of 
discussion that can be finalized, so Ms. Brooks, Ms. Bennett and he can sit down 
and see if that will fit into a roughly seven hour session of work. 

• Councilwoman Coffey commented that she thought that some of the things they 
verbalized were a Capital Improvement Plan and information about recruiting 
business that would fit Mineral Springs.  Mayor Becker responded those were two 
very important ones and as finance officer he could certainly help between the 
“nuts and bolts” and begin laying out a Capital Improvement Plan, but he hoped 
that Ms. Bennett and the experts could guide the council into how to structure it for 
future years. 



 

Minutes Book 16 68 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

• Councilwoman Critz commented that we were going to discuss the festival.  Mayor 
Becker responded the festival is an important item to try to nail down with any 
strategies, any learning from the past and any ideas for the future. 

• Mayor Becker explained that the way retreats work is that they will have their flip 
pages/sharpies and they will just sort of drill you down into getting very general 
ideas to a little more specific set of work plans.  Having a facilitator is key, because 
they tend to keep you focused.  We have these broad general ideas and they will 
hone in on those and ask specific questions and make specific suggestions based 
on their expertise. 

• Mayor Becker stated those are three things and asked what else the council felt 
was important or if the planning board had any specific areas.  Councilman 
Countryman mentioned short and long term plans relative to our community center, 
downtown development and some type of park/recreational facility/community 
recreational facility.  Mayor Becker responded that’s a Capital Improvement Plan 
item.  Councilman Countryman commented that he thought Ms. Bennett will direct 
the council in that way, because you need to approach it with some short term and 
long term goal and then establish a plan based on those short terms and long 
terms objectives.  Councilman Countryman is visualizing that the council will “throw 
stuff against the wall” early in the morning and it kind of runs down and it falls into 
place and then you go to lunch and then you come back and you start to become 
very specific and hopefully before it is over we would each kind of take a look at 
where we are and then make a personal attachment of some of those objectives. 

• Councilwoman Critz asked if they would be reviewing the survey results to see if 
that would point them in the right direction.  Mayor Becker responded that he 
definitely thought they had to have the survey there with them.  Councilman 
Countryman commented that she had already presented it.  Councilwoman Critz 
responded that she thought they were going to look at it in light of larger projects.  
Mayor Becker stated that we will make sure that we have that survey available for 
the participants.  Councilwoman Coffey commented that her only concern here was 
that they do not have the agenda so stacked that they don’t get to accomplish what 
they need to; if you have so much that you are looking at, they are going to get lost 
in that.  Councilman Countryman agreed they needed to be focused.  Mayor 
Becker added that Ms. Bennett and the person working with her will say how much 
effort needs to go into this and this, so they will recommend that the council does 
this from 8:30 to 10:00 and then you do this from ……  

• Ms. Brooks asked the council if they wanted the planning board involved with the 
retreat and if they should be prepared to be there all day or just in the morning.  
Councilwoman Coffey responded that Ms. Brooks had mentioned a half day and 
that would be fine with the board.  Councilwoman Critz responded that they could 
do either, because solidification might come in the afternoon.  Councilman 
Countryman responded that it would be voluntary.  Mayor Becker commented that 
we could expect them in the morning and we will focus our agenda items on things 
that the planning board will be most interested in and what is most relevant. 

• Mayor Becker asked the council if they were going to call this retreat to order as a 
special meeting since they will all be together and discussing policy.  Ms. Brooks 
responded she believed it had to be.  Councilman Countryman responded he didn’t 
think they had any alternative.  Mayor Becker commented that it should also be 



 

Minutes Book 16 69 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

called as a special meeting of the planning board and they will be called to order in 
the beginning as a formality.  

• Councilman Countryman made a motion to call for a special meeting on January 
20th to work on a quarterly retreat, to work on an operational plan that would 
include the planning board, particularly for the first half of the day at 8:00 a.m. until 
4:00 p.m. at the Rolling Hills Country Club in Monroe, NC and Councilwoman 
Coffey seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows:  

 
    Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  

Nays: None 
   

• Ms. Brooks informed the council that she had been summoned to fulfill her jury 
duties on January 20th at 1:15 p.m..  Councilman Countryman responded “you 
gotta do what you’ve got to do – have a nice trip”.  Mayor Becker mentioned that it 
is just down the highway; maybe Ms. Brooks will be able to come back.  
Councilwoman Coffey commented that Ms. Brooks might be able to get out of that.  
Ms. Brooks responded that she spoke with somebody today and was told it really 
depends on the judge, but she would obviously let them know she wasn’t trying to 
avoid jury duty; they could pick another day for her.   

    
8. Consideration of a Contract with MindMixer 

• Mayor Becker explained that he had the chance to participate in the conference 
call with the MindMixer representative.  The reason for the piece of paper from 
MindMixer that was in front of the council was that the fees that were in the agenda 
packet suddenly were not correct, because that was from last year when Ms. 
Brooks first discussed it with them.  The numbers the representative quoted on 
Tuesday during the conference call were like sticker shock; Ms. Brooks said “they 
don’t go up that much, because it is now 2015”.  The representative did send back 
what the revised fees for 2015 would be if we chose to do this.  Mayor Becker 
pointed out that there was a little background on what it does in the agenda packet; 
Ms. Brooks talked to these people last year before he did and it sounded very 
interesting.  Ms. Brooks commented that she was a very good saleswoman; the 
idea of what they are selling is great; however, there are drawbacks.  Councilman 
Countryman stated that they needed to come make a presentation.  It was noted 
that this was a company out of Michigan that didn’t make personal presentations, 
but they could do one on the phone.  Councilwoman Coffey commented that if you 
take a look at it and research it you may find these organizations are plentiful and 
everybody has a bank account they need filled.  Councilwoman Coffey apologized, 
but that’s what she reads these seminars and groups like that to be.  
Councilwoman Coffey is all for being involved in anything that will heighten your 
awareness and bring awareness to the council, but she personally thought after a 
little research was done you will find this is not it.  Councilwoman LaMonica 
commented that it’s the demographics of our residents; how many people have 
computers.  Councilwoman LaMonica stated that she didn’t see the fit.  Mayor 
Becker explained that he had discussed that with the MindMixer representative and 
how surprised Ms. Bennett had been.   Here we are in 2014 (at the time) and Ms. 
Bennett said “we’ve got to do our survey and we’ve got to do the online version 
with Survey Monkey, because all the towns she does this with are all doing it online 



 

Minutes Book 16 70 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

now”.  When Ms. Bennett came here the council remembers the look on her face 
when she said “we almost got no responses on Survey Monkey, everyone mailed 
their stuff in”.  Mayor Becker shared that with the MindMixer salesperson; we are 
unusual even with people who are used to towns, so it depends on whether they 
have access.  The way it works (and maybe Councilwoman Coffey understands it), 
it’s not our website; it is a separate sort of platform where people have to be able to 
log onto the Mineral Springs MindMixer site.  They (and staff) can pose questions 
and the council can set up topics for discussion.  You end up with a forum type 
thing.  It was very interesting; you can see it in a lot of context.  It’s a lot of money 
and the hurdle would be “could we even get more than 20 people to know about it”.  
Councilman Countryman offered “you can just look at this room, this isn’t costing 
us anything except our time and if we spent $5,600 we wouldn’t get any better 
participation”.  Councilwoman Critz responded not only that, but she agreed with 
Councilwoman Coffey and LaMonica’s perspective.  It would be appropriate if we 
had an overflow, a problem or a need; this is creating a website for people to go to 
that they don’t need.  Councilwoman Critz feels that what we have meets the 
needs of the community right now.  At this time, the council should dismiss it and if 
there is ever a need to come back to something similar to this format; 
Councilwoman Critz would personally like to see if from a local organization. 

• Councilwoman LaMonica offered that the town council could use the festival tent 
where you have the opportunity to survey folks; you can make it fun, you can find 
out what they want and you can do that as part of a tent at a festival kind of thing.  
Someone local could be used to get the information, but just over the course of a 
few hours as opposed to setting up a whole website; that seems to be more fitting 
for us.  Mayor Becker pointed out that the Town of Wake Forest, NC has a 
MindMixer site and if anyone was interested they could do a Google search for 
“Engage Wake Forest”.  Mayor Becker explained that he had visited the site and he 
and Ms. Brooks had to laugh because the first thing people said was “there’s a 
really ugly building downtown” and “when is somebody going to do something 
about that” and then “how about burying power lines”.  One guy said (it’s a public 
forum type of thing) “does anybody read these comments”.  Mayor Becker 
commented that was a much bigger jurisdiction than ours; it did occur to him that 
we might just find that we are like “yelling in the canyon”, because even for them it 
wasn’t necessarily getting this dialogue that we envision.  Mayor Becker asked if 
the council had a motion; it seems like we are leaning toward “let’s just say no for 
now”. 

• Councilwoman Critz made a motion that we say no for now to MindMixer and 
Councilwoman LaMonica seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 
  

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 

 
9. Consideration of a Budget Amendment 

• Mayor Becker noted that this was an easy one, it was in the agenda packet [from 
December’s cancelled meeting], but never got acted on.  Ms. Ridings commented 
that it [tax payments] is trickling in as the letters have gone out.  Mayor Becker 
added that Ms. Ridings collected two big long-term past due accounts, just by the 



 

Minutes Book 16 71 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

notification that they would be going to court next week unless she received the 
money (they were here the next day), so it is working. 

• Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to approve the budget amendment to file 
small claims court fees and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously as follows:  

 
Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 

 
• The budget amendment is as follows: 

 
 STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET OF  
THE TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 

O-2014-01 
 

 WHEREAS, NC G.S. 159-15 authorizes a municipal governing board to amend the annual budget ordinance at any time after the 
ordinance’s adoption; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, the following: 

 
 SECTION  1.  Appropriations and Amounts. Amendment #2014-01: 
 

INCREASE   DECREASE  
Tax Collection $1,260  Contingency $1,260 
     
Total $1,260  Total $1,260 

 
 SECTION 2.  Effective Date. This ordinance is effective upon adoption. 
 
  ADOPTED this 8th day of January, 2015.  Witness my hand and official seal: 
 

 
___________________________________ 

Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
 
 Attest: 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Vicky A. Brooks, Clerk 
 
10. Consideration of Re-Appointing a Board of Adjustment Member 

• Ms. Brooks explained that she had spoken with Ms. Sharon Carter who had 
expressed her interest in serving another term on our Board of Adjustment and it 
was up to the council if they wanted to reappoint her again.  Ms. Brooks noted that 
we also have a spot that is vacant from a member whose term has expired and she 
did not believe he wanted to reapply.  Councilman Countryman commented that we 
could satisfy several concerns.  Ms. Brooks responded that we do need to get a 
new Board of Adjustment member; in addition we need an alternate.  Ms. Brooks 
explained that she was looking back at newsletters and last year seemed to be 
devoted solely to the festival and she didn’t have her usual excerpt in there that 
said we need a Board of Adjustment member; we have needed an alternate for 
years.  Ms. Brooks stated that will go back on the docket of the newsletter.  Mayor 
Becker commented that those would be separate positions, but we would like to fill 
Sharon Carter’s position with Sharon Carter.  Councilman Countryman asked if she 



 

Minutes Book 16 72 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

had definitely shown an interest in being reappointed.  Ms. Brooks responded yes 
she has.     

• Councilman Countryman made a motion to reappoint Sharon Carter for another 
term on the Board of Adjustment and Councilwoman Neill seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously as follows:   
 

Ayes: Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill  
Nays: None 

 
11. Discussion of a Complaint Submitted to the Town Council in November 2014 

• Councilwoman Critz confessed that when the Prices brought this to our attention, 
she didn’t come down Highway 75 except when it was dark or dusk, so she made it 
a point to go in that direction at multiple times of the day.  The area is not as 
unsightly as other things we hope will be corrected, but we have no power or 
jurisdiction over these landowners; we can encourage them.  The town has done 
everything they could to work with the county to get sewer here, so that whatever 
their expectations or desires are can be fulfilled.  Councilwoman Critz thought that 
is certainly something we can all be very grateful for, but she is in semi-agreement 
with the Prices in that there is more that we can do there to make it less 
conspicuous.  Councilwoman Critz stated that she didn’t think it is was as unsightly 
as they express it to be, but she did think there was more that the town could to 
that would not be costly to the town or to our budget that could help with making it 
less visible.  Councilwoman Critz explained that when people come to us with 
things that they have observed in the community and safety issues we go to the 
Department of Transportation and do all we can, because it is not within our power 
to do it, but intercede, because we are their representatives.  With the safety issue, 
the town goes to the fire department or the police.  Councilwoman Critz thought 
that the town could take this on under our beautification and it would not be a tax 
burden at all.  The Steeplechase is an important part of what takes place in our 
community, it has added value to this area, it’s brought people to our area that 
otherwise probably never would come; this [pump station] is in a location where 
people enter and exit a lot during the actual race day.  Councilwoman Critz thought 
that anything that the town could do to make it less visible helps all of us on an 
everyday basis and it would certainly be complementary.  “We are not going to 
cater (and we shouldn’t) to any one entity, but I think we would help and certainly 
would want to help make anything as, you know, appealing to people like the 
Prices as the ones that own and operate the Steeplechase, as much as we would 
say the downtown landowners as they start to rebuild and we participate in that, so 
I don’t see it as, you know, showing favoritism or anything else.  I don’t think we 
would do anymore or any less than we would do for any other landowner as 
improvements or rebuilding takes place”, Councilwoman Critz said.  

• Councilwoman Coffey stated that she was just so excited that it [sewer] had come 
to fruition and all she could see was progress; it looked like a golden avenue out 
there, not an eyesore.  Councilwoman Coffey explained that she understood what 
the Prices are feeling, but she would like for our zoning administrator to address 
this, so that it could be put to bed.  Councilman Countryman stated that before it 
got put to bed, unless he was incorrect, it’s really not our responsibility; it’s not our 
property.  Councilwoman Coffey stated that was what she [Ms. Brooks] was getting 



 

Minutes Book 16 73 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

ready to tell us.  Councilman Countryman continued that it belongs to the county; 
they bought it.  Councilwoman Coffey responded there’s nothing we can do.  
Councilwoman LaMonica offered that we don’t have any jurisdiction.  Councilman 
Countryman responded that he wouldn’t go that far.  Councilwoman Critz explained 
that it was just like we decorate the corner.  Councilman Countryman commented 
that if the town did anything, what they need to do is approach the county (we can’t 
just go fix it) and consult with them in order to do anything; if it is our feeling that 
something does need to be done.  The town needs to consider what might be done 
and then go to the county and say “these are some things that we have heard in 
our community and this is an attitude that’s developing in our community relative to 
this wonderful new pump station that you’ve put in our community – we would like 
your permission to enhance its visibility or lack thereof visibility and we would hope 
that you would let us do that at city expense by planting some trees or doing 
whatever is necessary”.  Councilman Countryman thought it needed to be 
understood that we can’t just go fix it, because it doesn’t belong to us and asked if 
that was not true.  Mayor Becker responded that’s definitely true.   

• Councilwoman Coffey asked that Ms. Brooks advise the council.  Ms. Brooks 
explained that the county met our landscaping ordinance to the penny.  If we now 
see what they did and we don’t like what they did, then perhaps we should change 
our zoning ordinance, which is something the council could task the planning board 
with.  Councilwoman LaMonica stated that the same thing applies to the type of 
lighting they put up and asked if they met our requirements.  Ms. Brooks responded 
no, the lighting that they submitted to us was approved because it was compliant, 
but apparently the light that they put in wasn’t the light that they submitted.  Ms. 
Brooks explained that she had informed the county that it wasn’t compliant and 
they asked “how about if we put a motion sensor on it and it just comes on when 
there are people out there or otherwise it will be off”.  Ms. Brooks explained that 
she said “okay, let’s do that and see how that works”.  However, from what Ms. 
Brooks is being told now, the light is always on, so apparently there is always 
activity going on.  Ms. Brooks will contact her contact in Union County to inform him 
that it is not working.  Ms. Brooks added that she likes to try to be fair and 
reasonable with people, but this isn’t working.  

• Councilwoman Critz explained that she realized that we can’t just march in there, 
take over and do it; she was just saying that possibly we could with permission, 
assist in making this a little less conspicuous.  Just like we do things on the corner, 
which is not our land either, but we do that now with the Optimist Club and we have 
done it with others (we don’t do it solo) like the Mineral Springs Neighbors.  These 
are things that we invest in for the beautification of the downtown area.  
Councilwoman Coffey mentioned that she had thought of something nice and even 
suggested that she might just do that “out-of-pocket” herself; it’s not a big deal to 
put up some beautiful screening.  Mayor Becker suggested a couple of nice 
shrubs.  Councilwoman Coffey asked if anyone remembered the mixed use 
development at the corner of Gleneagles Road and Park Road up in Charlotte right 
next to the country club.  There was a huge mound of dirt, but they have this 
beautiful screening up and you would think that you were driving up to the most 
luxurious complexes in the world and you see this mound of dirt.  Councilwoman 
Coffey stated that she thought about that in reference to this and suggested the 
screening.  We all want “nice” for Mineral Springs and if Councilwoman Coffey 



 

Minutes Book 16 74 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

could do something personally she would.  In light of that, that’s where 
Councilwoman Coffey had a conversation with our zoning administrator.  They 
[county] did meet the letter of the law; however, if they were open to us doing 
anything over there, but they probably were not going to be open, which is why she 
had gotten some advice from the zoning administrator.   

• Councilman Countryman commented if the issue was that we need to do a better 
job through the planning process, it still isn’t going to do anything for what’s already 
there, because you can’t go back after the fact and say “you did everything you 
were supposed to, but that wasn’t good enough”.  Councilwoman Critz responded 
that she didn’t think we needed to tell them it isn’t good enough, we just need to 
say “having done this and now it is there and the position it is in, would you be 
open to us adding some things to enhance the”.  Councilman Countryman added 
“the visual of it”.  Councilman Countryman stated that he thought his point was 
missed, as he said a moment ago that we need to contact the county and with 
them do something to enhance or minimize it’s visibility (he is all for that) if that’s 
possible, but regardless of whether we did a good job with the ordinance or not, if 
we change it at this point that doesn’t have any bearing on the current situation.  
Although it would make things better for future improvements possibly.  
Councilwoman Critz stated that the truth was “we will never have another pump 
station in downtown”, so this is the only time that we’re going to have to consider 
this particular issue.  Ms. Brooks offered that she still thought that they needed to 
address the landscaping ordinance.  If they actually knew how much landscaping 
went into that piece of property they would be completely amazed; however, they 
can’t “see” everything that the ordinance required.  Councilman Countryman 
responded that maybe we are dealing with two issues.  Councilwoman Critz 
responded yeah, one of the points that she thought Ms. Brooks was making was 
that she saw the earth being moved, everything being brought in and now we are 
looking at basically a screening issue.  Ms. Brooks commented that unfortunately 
(or fortunately) it depends on the property.  There is a lot of screening on that 
property, because it is abutting residential and there has to be a buffer, so there is 
shrubbery planted down the side and there are extra trees in the rear.  Mayor 
Becker commented that in this particular case, nobody lives on this side, so the 
screening has been done to screen from nothing right now.  Ms. Brooks mentioned 
that part of it was in the floodplain.  Mayor Becker added that it won’t ever be built 
on ever, but the ordinance required screening to an abutting property, because it is 
zoned residential.  Councilwoman Critz stated that in her opinion she wasn’t sure 
that the ordinance needed to be changed or that the planning board needed to go 
through it; “it is what it is and the front of it is very visible and I think in a few years 
when some of that stuff grows, it will naturally look different”.  Ms. Brooks stated (in 
her personal opinion) that working with people, your downtown should be taking off 
sometime and they are going to have to follow these landscaping rules just like the 
county did on this piece of property and perhaps we won’t like how much 
landscaping actually has to go into the strip shopping center, would the council 
then go in and plant plants there as well, because our ordinance wasn’t up to that 
standard.  Councilwoman Critz responded no and she thought (personally) the 
point is not you’re not going to rebuild the strip shopping center in any fashion that 
you would surround it with a chain link fence.  Ms. Brooks explained that it was in 
the Downtown Overlay; therefore, it will have a wrought iron fence.  Councilwoman 
Critz stated that her point was that this is an isolated issue.  Ms. Brooks responded 



 

Minutes Book 16 75 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

it is, but going back over the landscaping ordinance, maybe we won’t have another 
pump station, but we could have another cell tower that has a fence around it.  If 
we don’t start addressing that, we are always going to get the same thing.  
Councilwoman Critz suggested making it conditional for a situation that involves 
the requirement of fencing.  Ms. Brooks added that maybe we could spell out what 
kind of fencing they could have when it comes to utilities or cell towers. 

• Councilwoman Critz wondered if any additional screening of vegetation (like Leland 
Cypress) be in the way of what the county needs to do out there.  Ms. Brooks 
commented that she didn’t think the county would be opposed to the town putting 
shrubbery in front of the fence, but she didn’t know if that was going to fix the 
problem.  Mayor Becker responded that he thought a few large maturing evergreen 
shrubs in a nice native species (three of four of them) in front of the fence would be 
very beautiful in a few years and it would not hurt the county’s property.  It would 
be very inexpensive; they will not be putting in a 10 foot in diameter shrub, it’s 
going to have to grow into that and that may not satisfy people. The gate [area] can 
never have shrubs in front of it; it might need to have Councilwoman Coffey do her 
little mural of….   

• Councilwoman Coffey mentioned that the council had to remember to put 
themselves in the county’s position as well, anything that walks on that property is 
a liability to them, so we have to realize that and they may not be open to any of 
this.  Councilman Countryman stated that was a very real assumption and if that 
ended up to be an accurate assumption, the problem was a solved, because we 
can’t do anything about it.  “Could we just be grateful that it is there”?  
Councilwoman Critz responded that she didn’t think that this is a situation of not 
being grateful that it’s there, that is not how she takes it.  Councilwoman Critz 
asked if the council could just ask Ms. Brooks to talk to the county and see if it 
would be a problem to do what Mayor Becker suggested; it would be very 
inexpensive just to provide some natural screening for the front of the fencing. 

• Councilwoman LaMonica commented just to reiterate that Ms. Brooks, as an 
example of what Mayor Becker had described, the electric company on New Town 
Road put in a station that is surrounded by a chain link fence where they built up 
berms, etc. and the landscaping around it is stunning.  Does it hide what is going 
on behind it?  No, but we all know it’s necessary for the manner in which we live, 
we like our lights on.  The landscaping is extremely well done, which helps to 
mediate an eye sore.  

• Councilwoman Critz stated that the council has so many discussions on ways that 
they can facilitate beautifying downtown.  There has been a great deal of interest in 
our surveys about it.  Councilwoman Critz’s suggestion is not to just comply to a 
small part of our constituency, but a large part of our constituency in our surveys 
and in conversations at our festival and other places says things about beautifying 
downtown and if the council can do anything.  Councilwoman Critz added 
understanding that the council can’t take over personal property, but this is 
something that she thought they could do to accentuate in a positive way and it 
would be expensive, but they obviously need permission.  Councilwoman 
LaMonica commented that all the council could do was ask and all they can do is 
say no and if they say no “so be it, it’s done”.  Mayor Becker commented if they say 
yes, the council will move on from there, but they don’t want to commit to spending 
large amounts of money on other people’s property.                                                  



 

Minutes Book 16 76 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

12. Staff Reports 
• Ms. Brooks commented that the newsletter should be going out by the end of the 

month (after the retreat) and if anybody had any suggestions for the newsletter she 
would be more than happy to hear them. 
 

13. Other Business 
• Councilwoman Critz asked if there was any way that we could get two [tape 

recording] machines, so that they could work in tandem, so that Ms. Ridings 
wouldn’t have to change, she could just flip to the second machine.  Mayor Becker 
responded that he would talk with Marion Holloway about an improved situation 
with the CD recording. 

• Councilwoman Critz mentioned that between the November and December 
meeting we had a Union County Sheriff Deputy (Officer Green) killed and asked if 
the town could send a letter to the Sheriff’s Department recognizing that we realize 
that this happened and that we would like to send our condolences as a 
council/community.  In addition, state our appreciation, because they are our safety 
as far as police is concerned.  Mayor Becker responded that we can draft 
something for the next meeting.   

• Councilwoman Cureton mentioned that there was another officer that died and she 
left behind five kids; she was 39 years old.  Councilwoman Cureton stated that she 
sent her condolences to the husband.  Mayor Becker asked if she was a deputy or 
with Monroe.  Councilwoman Cureton responded that she was a deputy; she 
worked with William Thompson and those guys.  Mayor Becker 
commented/questioned that she wasn’t killed, she died of natural causes.  Mayor 
Becker stated that he would research that and put them both together.  

• Councilman Countryman directed his comment to Ms. Brooks, since we are in the 
new year (as a reminder) for the State of North Carolina and asked when the 
Urban Archery [paperwork] had to be submitted.  Ms. Brooks responded that she 
thought it was by February, but she will check on it.   

• Mayor Becker informed the council that both the Union County Board of 
Commissioners and the Union County School Board has appointed liaisons to the 
municipalities.  For the County Commissioner it was “almost like a new policy” 
where there was supposed to be a little more outreach.  Commissioner Richard 
Helms had suggested this (Mayor Becker watched the tape of the meeting) and he 
assigned Commissioner Jerry Simpson to be our county liaison.  Obviously, the 
town can talk to all of them, but Commissioner Simpson is designated for Mineral 
Springs, Waxhaw and Marvin.  For the Board of Education they assigned Leslie 
Boyd, whom we met at the festival.  Ms. Boyd requested Mineral Springs, so she 
was assigned to Mineral Springs.  Mayor Becker explained that Ms. Boyd’s contact 
information is on the Board of Education’s website.  Councilwoman Critz 
commented that now that the Board of Education and the County Commissioners 
are in an “outreach frame of mind”, which we have never heard or seen 
demonstrated before, she thought the town should reciprocate and actually invite 
them.        

 
14. Adjournment 

 Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to adjourn and Councilwoman Cureton 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 



 

Minutes Book 16 77 January 8, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

  Ayes: Countryman, Coffey, Cureton, LaMonica and Neill 
Nays: None 
 

• The meeting was adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
• The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, February 12, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. at 

the Mineral Springs Town Hall. 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
          
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk   Frederick Becker III, Mayor  



 

Minutes Book 16 78 January 20, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

Town of Mineral Springs 
Rolling Hills Country Club 

2722 W Roosevelt Boulevard ~ Monroe, NC 
Town Council Retreat 

Special Meeting 
Joint Session with the Mineral Springs Planning Board  

January 20, 2015 ~ 8:00 AM  
  

 

Minutes Draft  
 

 
 

The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Special Session at 
the Rolling Hills Country Club at 2722 W Roosevelt Boulevard in Monroe, North Carolina, at 
8:00 a.m. on Tuesday, January 20, 2015.  This was a joint session with the Mineral Springs 
Planning Board.  
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Mayor Pro Tem Janet Critz, Councilman Jerry 

Countryman, Councilwoman Valerie Coffey, Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton, 
Wanda Moore, Councilwoman Peggy Neill, Town Clerk/Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks and Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector Janet Ridings, Donna 
Sherrin.  

 
Absent: Councilwoman Melody LaMonica, Mike LaMonica and Bettylyn Krafft. 
 
Visitors: Facilitators Nadine Bennett and Emily Parker. 
 
With a quorum present Mayor Frederick Becker called the Retreat Special Meeting of the 
Town Council on January 20, 2015 to order at 8:32 a.m. 
 
With a quorum present Chairwoman Valerie Coffey called the Retreat for the Planning Board 
of January 20, 2015 to order at 8:34 a.m. 
 
1.  Gather and Breakfast Snacks 

• Centralina Council of Governments facilitators Nadine Bennett and Emily Parker 
introduced themselves.  It was noted that Ms. Parker was associated with UNCC 
when the original Mineral Springs Land Use Plan was put into place. 

 
2. Welcome, Introductions & Agenda Adoption 

• Council members introduced themselves and stated how long they had served as a 
councilmember, where they came from and if they had served on any other town 
boards. 

• Ms. Bennett and Ms. Parker went over the ground rules of the retreat: keep 
focused, pay attention, respect comments, listen to others and work together.  The 
facilitators were there to make sure the council members and planning board 
members stayed on schedule.   
 
 
 



 

Minutes Book 16 79 January 20, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

3. Team Building Exercise 
• Ms. Bennett and Ms. Parker introduced the “Newspaper of the Future” exercise 

and explained that the group will answer the question “what you would like to see 
about the Town of Mineral Springs and their accomplishments in the newspaper 
article 30 years down the road”.  The facilitators went around the room and allowed 
everyone to read their responses.  Those responses included: 

 
 Greenspace preservation / Innovative downtown design 
 Annual festival / Land use plan in place / maintain low tax rate 
 Sewer – 2014 (on Highway 75) / Investment in Human Resources 
 Signage downtown  
 Restaurants downtown 
 New city hall 
 Rural character intact 
 Steeplechase 
 Parks for all / Greenway 
 Worship for all 
 Accessible local government 
 Continuous improvement 

 
• The headlines would read: 

 
 Celebration 
 Conservation 
 Great Place to Live and Call Home 
 Rural Integrity and Quality of Life 
 Oasis in a Desert of Suburban Development 

 
• Ms. Bennett commented that even after all these years the town council and the 

planning board have all stuck to their beliefs and everyone was on the same page.  
  
4. Discussion of Mineral Springs Festival   

• The council agreed to have a festival again on September 19, 2015.  It was noted 
that attendance at the 2014 festival was approximately 600.  When a “show of 
hands” was taken on how the festival would be done, all but one council member 
raised their hands for the festival to be done “in-house” by staff.  Advertising for the 
2015 festival needs to be improved over what was done in 2014.  Discussion led to 
not hiring a band, but to have local musicians to provide entertainment throughout 
the festival.  Everyone was in favor of the opening ceremony with the Parkwood 
High School Band.  It was noted that the kid’s games were outsourced to the 
Methodist Church; they also involved the Girl Scouts and did a great job. 

• Continued discussion of the 2014 festival included that the nonprofits were thrilled 
with the outcome and wanted to be part of the next one.  The vendor survey forms 
were sent out and several suggestions were sent back, one of which was 
“improved advertising”.  A couple of the vendors ran out of food, which will be 
addressed for the next festival.  The raffles for door prizes were well received, as 
was the lady that brought the llamas and the Boy Scouts selling popcorn.  Mr. 



 

Minutes Book 16 80 January 20, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

Muhammad had autographed pictures and football/basketball games that he and 
his family were doing.  

• The projected budget was $3,500 – income was $1,630 and expenses were $2,953 
leaving a net cost to the town of $1,323.  The sign budget will need to be increased 
this year, because we will need to have more signs to put out – especially at the 
corner. 

• The council agreed that they did not want a “political tent” for “politicking”; it was 
noted that this is an election year.  The tent for the council will be designated at the 
“Town Tent”.  If politicians want to walk around and hand out business cards - that 
will be okay, but there will be no politicking or tent for the candidates.         

 
5. Discussion Policies and Guidance for Town Staff 

• Code Enforcement was discussed in regards to Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks 
driving around town.  The council had previously directed Ms. Brooks to act upon 
notification received in writing, while some residents thought the she should be out 
riding around town enforcing the zoning ordinance.  After a lengthy discussion, it 
was determined that what Ms. Brooks was presently doing are the wishes of the 
council.  Therefore, if Ms. Brooks receives something in writing she will act upon it; 
however, Ms. Brooks will check with the town attorney to see if a phone call 
constitutes enough communication to act on it.  It was noted that if someone 
submits something in writing it can be signed “anonymous”, but when a phone call 
is received the caller usually identifies themselves when Ms. Brooks answers the 
phone and the same goes with an email; their identity can be requested by the 
violator.  The council also expressed concerns about the safety of Ms. Brooks if 
she were to go out riding around town looking for zoning violations; there are some 
pretty remote pieces of property in town and some people have long driveways, so 
violations are not easy to spot from the street.  Safety was a concern; therefore, 
written complaints are the best way to go.  

• There was discussion about a policy manual for the Finance Officer, as well as a 
spending policy, because there is nothing written down.  The town needs to have 
more written policies and procedures for each job description with the addition of 
vacation and sick time.  There are a lot of “gray” areas when it comes to some 
issues, such as “how much time does an employee get for vacation and sick time”; 
are they even eligible for vacation and sick time; this needs to all be spelled out in 
policies and procedures.    
  

6. 2014 Community Survey 
• Mayor Becker explained that the town had a demographic shift; more aging 

population, people are not moving away, they are staying in their homes.  The 
facilitators went around the room and asked each person what they would like to 
see for the future of Mineral Springs.  The majority of the responses were low 
taxes, clean up downtown, keep the same rural quality of life and agriculture.  
Councilman Countryman expressed concerns over the fact that the population 
seems to think the council has the ability to make the downtown look better and get 
it cleaned up.  We have a divided community in that some like us and some do not.  
The council has made a commitment and is going in the right direction. 

• Ms. Parker asked what public forum the town had for the residents.  The responses 
were public comments at the monthly council meeting, newsletters, coffee with the 



 

Minutes Book 16 81 January 20, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

mayor, website and the festival was a great way to communicate with the public.  A 
Facebook page was discussed, but could create a public record nightmare; it would 
require a policy.  Ms. Brooks will talk with Brett Vines from the county IT 
Department to get some background information on establishing a Facebook page.  

• Ms. Bennett was surprised at the small response to the last survey on the Survey 
Monkey; 90% was mailed back, which explains the aging population in the town. 

• Ms. Brooks suggested that the business owners in downtown get together and 
form a committee to look at downtown and what they can do to make it better.  This 
would not be a town function, because of open meetings law.  One of the 
downtown business owners will have to be the champion of this committee with a 
town liaison, but it wouldn’t be a town function.  This committee could submit 
thoughts and ideas to the town about what they would like to see in the downtown 
core; it is at least a place to start. 

• Ms. Parker asked about the types of businesses the council and planning board 
would like to see downtown.  Several suggestions were given, but research would 
have to be done prior to search or recruitment methods being put into place.  Some 
rehabilitation of properties downtown would have to take place before anything 
could even begin.  The overall consensus for new businesses was dry cleaners, 
beauty shop, grocery store, small restaurants and a bank.  Harris Teeter has not 
made any commitment to what may eventually be put on their property, which is a 
long-term project.  Mr. Kaltsounis has submitted an application for a permit to 
reface the downtown strip shopping center, which has the potential for an 
restaurant and a few office spaces, but at the present time the building is in bad 
shape and not functional.  If Mr. Kaltsounis does the reface, the parking lot would 
be upgraded with islands, landscaping and entrances (already approved by the 
Department of Transportation).   

• The Shannon property on Highway 75 had an evaluation done on it by Duke 
Energy and if a suitable business were to move in it would create jobs and 
economy for the town.  If the economy changes, things may begin to happen. 

• Sidewalks downtown were discussed.  If the property is developed, sidewalks 
would be going in.  There are small neighborhoods on Potter, Eubanks, Helen and 
Charlton Oaks that do not have sidewalks; that consists of about 500 people that 
could use sidewalks.  As developers develop, they will happen, but residents that 
have homes on Highway 75 will not be required to put in sidewalks.  Sidewalks in 
the downtown were listed on the survey and may need to be discussed in a forum 
setting; they have been referred to as the “bridge to nowhere”.      

 
7. Park Planning 

• Mayor Becker explained that the town has a significant investment in the greenway 
and in 2014 they bought additional property for the greenway in hopes of adding to 
the amenities of the greenway in the form of future bathrooms and a picnic area.  
Councilman Countryman was in favor of long-term development (five years) in 
these areas, but feels there are more important issues that need the council’s 
attention.  Other council members felt this should be a short-term plan and would 
like to see those amenities before the five years.  There is a possibility of using 
portable bathroom facilities until there are enough funds in the bank to construct 
these items on the wish list.  An Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance 
issue will have to be resolved before anything else can be done at the greenway. 



 

Minutes Book 16 82 January 20, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

• The town hall park was discussed and the facilitator advised the town to hire a 
consultant.  The proposed park will be 50 feet wide and 250 feet deep; 
approximately 15,000 square feet or 1/3rd of an acre.  It will be located on the town 
hall property, which is downtown so it can be used by a variety of people.  There 
seemed to be a consensus of the council and planning board members that they 
would like to see a fenced area of play equipment for kids, benches, picnic tables, 
access to a water fountain and access to a bathroom (portable).  The council 
requested a proposal with a timeframe be presented at the February meeting. 

• Discussion of the Community Center included an overall vision that it would be 
used for family reunions, small wedding receptions, birthday parties, senior events, 
Girl and Boy Scout meetings and private events.  The work inside would be 
extensive, which would include raising the floor in the rear of the building, redoing 
all of the floors, installing bathrooms, kitchen and a small office.  The fee would 
need to cover the cost of the building and the continued maintenance of the 
building; a fee schedule would need to be created.  There would be no alcohol 
since it is on town property.  Mayor Becker explained that the net worth of the town 
account was $657,000 on the December statement and it should be $700,000 by 
the end of 2015.  The facilitator suggested that the community center and the park 
planning should both be on the same timeline and the town should get started on it.          
   

8. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
• The CIP would cover spending over a 10 year period.  Councilman Countryman 

stated the town has never put a plan together; the town collects the money, it goes 
into the bank until somebody comes up with a plan to spend it.  We have never had 
a plan for 10, 15 and 20 years, nor have we ever borrowed money.  There are 
future plans, but they have never been written down.  The town has guidance from 
the finance officer and surveys, which plans are created from.  The Institute of 
Government has a CIP book, which does appear online or it can be purchased.  
Mayor Becker would like to obtain a copy of that book for background information; 
the council agreed to that before they would vote on whether the staff writes the 
CIP or hires COG to do it.  It is possible that staff could present something to the 
council with guidance from COG or COG could write it with staff input.  This will be 
discussed at the February meeting.   
 

9. Review of Goals & Action Items and Final Thoughts 
• Ms. Bennett and Ms. Parker reviewed the goals and action items: 

 
 Downtown business owners get together – the town will start this, but will not 

take it over; need a leader. 
 Call Mr. Kaltsounis to see what his plans are for the strip building property. 
 Contact COG for best practices downtown. 
 Discussions for the festival and information. 
 Need a town seal. 
 Ask attorney about campaigning at festival. 
 Festival will be in-house – communications/media plan 
 Festival will be from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
 Attorney – policies and code enforcement (inquire about phone calls) 
 Signs in right-of-way can be picked up by all. 
 Job description – policy manual for each. 



 

Minutes Book 16 83 January 20, 2015 - DRAFT  
 

 Union County Environmental Health – inquire about septic for community 
center. 

 Draft a Request for Proposal (RFP) for park. 
 Aligning park and community center. 
 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) – staff begins process.  

  
10. Adjournment 

 Councilwoman Critz made a motion to adjourn the retreat and Councilman 
Countryman seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 

 
  Ayes: Countryman, Coffey, Critz, Cureton and Neill 

Nays: None 
 

• The retreat was adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
          
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk   Frederick Becker III, Mayor  



DECEMBER 31,2014 REGULAR TAX 
BEGINNING CHARGE 
TAX CHARGE 
PUBLIC UTILITIES 
DISCOVERIES 
NON-DISCOVERIES 
ABATEMENTS 
TOTAL CHARGE 
BEGINNING COLLECTIONS 
COLLECTIONS - TAX 

COLLECTIONS- INTEREST 
TOTAL COLLECTIONS 
BALANCE OUTSTANDING 

PERCENTAGE OF REGULAR 

,COLLECTION_f_EE 1.~% 

DECEMBER 2014 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 

PERCENT AGE REPORT 
2014 2013 2012 

64,418.92 64,960.04 66,162.67 

64,418.92 64,960.04 66,162.67 
35,679.27 64,045.53 65,554.34 
17,029.98 99.57 68.40 

10.92 14.34 
52,709.25 64,145.10 65,622.74 
11,709.67 814.94 539.93 

81.82% 98.75% 99.18% 

255.45 1.66 1.24 



Mineral Springs Prior Years Property Tax Report
December 2014

Prepared by Janet Ridings 01/05/15 Page 1

December 31, 2014 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

BEGINNING CHARGE $64,878.42 $64,737.60 $63,911.13 $65,443.06 $52,276.82 $51,397.02 $49,217.72 $41,651.21
PUBLIC UTILITIES $1,319.20 $1,251.60 $1,218.28 $1,112.42 $1,056.90 $779.12 $624.69 $618.17
MINIMAL RELEASES ($145.21) ($152.88) ($157.18) ($158.76) ($150.55) ($50.50) ($47.49) ($45.06)
DISCOVERIES $59.06 $318.85 $46.46 $46.72 $117.44 $417.27 $199.93 $662.98
ABATEMENTS (RELEASES) ($272.06) ($443.92) ($86.25) ($1,297.04) ($31.68) ($12.99)
TOTAL CHARGE $65,839.41 $65,711.25 $64,932.44 $65,146.40 $53,268.93 $52,542.91 $49,994.85 $42,874.31

PREVIOUS COLLECTIONS $65,213.27 $65,104.58 $64,330.68 $64,677.54 $52,926.21 $52,187.11 $49,704.52 $42,630.75
PREVIOUS BALANCE DUE $626.14 $606.67 $601.76 $468.86 $342.72 $355.80 $290.33 $243.56 $3,535.84

COLLECTIONS - TAX $81.83 $64.45 $67.36 $51.15 $44.58 $47.95 $44.58 $40.80 $442.70
COLLECTIONS - INTEREST/FEES $43.20 $39.99 $40.88 $65.38 $49.30 $54.60 $55.31 $43.34 $392.00
GROSS MONTHLY COLLECTIONS $125.03 $104.44 $108.24 $116.53 $92.23 $102.55 $99.89 $84.14 $833.05
MISC. ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL TAX COLLECTED TO DATE $65,295.10 $65,169.03 $64,398.04 $64,728.69 $52,970.79 $52,235.06 $49,749.10 $42,671.55

BALANCE OUTSTANDING $544.31 $542.22 $534.40 $417.71 $298.14 $307.85 $245.75 $202.76 $3,093.14
PERCENTAGE COLLECTED 99.17% 99.17% 99.18% 99.36% 99.44% 99.41% 99.51% 99.53%



Mineral Springs Unpaid Property Taxes - Real and Personal as of December 31, 2014

Name Tax Map Number 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

2K CONTRACTING INC 50087944 $3.18 $2.76 $2.41 $2.26 $1.96 $1.71 $1.49

AUTRY, ELVIS VERDELL &WF SERESA WHITE, 05033051 $17.37 $17.37 $17.37 $17.37 $14.76 $14.76 $14.76 $14.76

BAILEY, GEORGE ALLEN & BAILEY, JESSIE F 06039008 $14.54 $14.54 $29.09

BOND, CELESTE B 06054063 $27.92

BRIDGES JAMES CORBETT 50084062 $1.84 $1.91 $2.04

BROOKS, STEPHEN R 50089854 $1.13 $1.24

BROOME, JAMES ANDREW & WIFE AMANDA REA 06060007E $17.08 $17.08 $17.08 $17.08 $13.58 $13.58 $13.58 $13.58

BROOME, REBECCA G 06060007A $9.02 $9.03

CAROLINA STREET SUPPLY 50103059 $6.88

CAROLINA STREET SUPPLY, SHEPPARD JONATHAN 848391 $6.88

CMH CONTRACTING INC 50092570 $14.85

COOMBER CUSTOM MASONRY LLC 1812652 $10.44

COSMETICS SPA HAIR 601739 $2.75

COSMETICS SPA HAIR 50102370 $2.75

COVINGTON, JIMMIE H 05033014 $38.80 $38.80 $38.80 $38.80 $40.81 $40.81 $40.81 $40.81

CURVES OF MINERAL SPRINGS 50092178 $8.54

CUSTOM DESIGN CONCRETE 50092179 $12.02 $10.46 $9.82 $8.54

D'AMICO, JAMES L 06054024 $27.68 $27.68 $27.68

DEESE MARY NIXON 50082349 $1.00

DUNCAN, ROBERT W 50100863 $2.63

ELLIOTT, JAMES EDWARD & MARIO JAMES ELLIOTT 06060006E $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $10.37 $10.37 $10.37

EPIC REALTY GROUP INC 50094704 $10.46 $9.10 $8.54 $7.43

FATHER & SON PAINTERS 50093623 $2.41 $2.09 $1.53

FATHER & SON PAINTERS 264482 $2.41

FAULKNER, LONNIE 375789 $8.72

Wednesday, December 31, 2014 Page 1 of 3



Name Tax Map Number 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

FAULKNER, LONNIE JR 50093190 $8.72 $8.76 $5.18 $10.02 $8.64

FUNDERBURK, MARGARET B & FUNDERBURK, LERO 06039007D $8.21 $8.21 $5.66 $1.50 $1.50 $1.68

GRADY, DEITRICH 06018045D $8.73 $8.73 $8.73 $8.73 $7.08 $7.08 $7.08

GRIFFIN, FAIRLEY J 05033026 $6.20 $6.20 $6.20 $6.20 $3.78 $3.78 $3.78 $3.78

HALLS PRESSURE WASHING 50096449 $4.18 $3.64 $3.17 $2.97

HALLS PRESSURE WASHING % MARLIN HALL 269402 $4.18

HELMS, DARYL J & HELMS, LISA JUNE 06036005 $34.20 $34.20

HERRON ENTERPRISES INC 50071162 $10.54 $9.58 $8.78

HERRON ENTERPRISES INC 100052852 $10.54

HOWARD, ULYSESS 05033036 $9.43 $9.43 $9.43 $9.35 $7.90 $7.90 $7.90 $7.90

HUNTLEY, ANNETTE HOUSTON 05033061 $11.92 $11.92 $11.92 $11.83 $10.79

J & S MEAT PROCESSING 50093774 $3.64 $3.17

JUS 4 U II 50090771 $8.54 $7.43

KIDZ UNITED CLUB 50094388 $2.41 $2.09 $1.49

KIDZ UNITED CLUB % SHALETHIA MATTHEWS 591578 $2.41

KNIGHT, BRENDA S 50100309 $6.86 $2.51

LEIGH'S BOOKS 'N SUPPLIES 50094248 $12.02 $9.10 $8.54 $7.43

MASSEY, JAMES ALLEN & ESTER WILSON 06039007B $7.96 $7.96 $7.96 $7.96

MASSEY, MARCUS A 05006009J $21.76 $21.76 $21.76 $21.76 $20.46 $20.46 $20.46 $20.46

MATHENY, VERNA 455325 $2.22

MCDOUGALL, SHERRY CARTER 06084001L $6.86 $6.86 $6.86 $6.86

MCGEE, BOBBY E & MCGEE, JANICE B 06039007A $14.99 $14.99 $14.99 $14.99 $12.94

METHENY, VERNA 50094323 $2.22 $2.44 $2.38

MEXICAN PAINTERS (THE) 50092685 $7.43

NOBLE WATERS COMPANY THE 915182 $13.83

NOBLE WATERS COMPANY, THE 50092867 $13.83 $12.02 $10.46 $9.82 $8.54 $7.43

R & D MASONRY INC 50092552 $8.54

REALTY INVESTORS INC 50082898 $1.02

Wednesday, December 31, 2014 Page 2 of 3



Name Tax Map Number 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

ROBERTO BONILLA CUSTOM FRAMING 50104497 $2.75

ROBINSON, JERALDINE 05033034 $9.66 $9.66 $9.66 $9.66 $8.42

ROBINSON, SHEILA ANN & DIGSBY, DONALD L 06039019A $29.07

S & S PLUMBING 50101044 $7.91 $6.88

S & S PLUMBING % SAMUEL SEEGERS 248507 $7.91

SMITH, MARVIN D & SMITH, DORIS B 06054094 $31.44 $31.44 $31.44 $31.44

SNYDER, DOROTHY L 06114092 $20.37 $20.37 $20.37 $20.37 $20.69 $20.69

STARNES MARGARET H 50073018 $2.01 $2.12 $2.16

STRAING GRACIE M 50082038 $3.12 $3.12 $3.70 $3.70 $3.36 $3.70

STRAING, GRACIE M 2026048 $3.12

STRAING, GRACIE M 05033081 $6.92 $6.92 $6.92 $6.92 $3.78 $3.78 $3.78 $3.78

STRAING, GRACIE M 05033080 $20.46 $20.46 $20.46 $20.54 $29.20 $29.20 $29.20 $29.20

TARLTON, AMANDA C 06054036 $24.85 $24.85

WAXHAW ALL TILE 50099231 $6.88

WENDY GREENE AND ASSOCIATES 50093112 $12.13 $9.59

WENTZ-BROWN, AMANDA E 06039011A $32.40 $32.40 $32.40 $13.32 $13.32 $13.32 $13.32

WHITE, ERIC DARRYL 05033028 $28.27 $23.71 $23.71 $6.16

WILLIAMS, RUTH & HUSBAND J C WILLIAMS 05033179 $19.11 $19.11 $19.11 $19.11 $27.35 $27.35 $27.35 $27.35

WILLIS, GENE E JR 06114054 $18.13

Total $544.31 $542.22 $534.40 $417.71 $298.14 $307.85 $245.75 $202.76

Wednesday, December 31, 2014 Page 3 of 3



































































Town of Mineral Springs 
Resolution in Memory and Honor of Robert Neill 

R-2015-01 
 

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Town Council, for itself, the Mineral Springs Board of 
Adjustment, the Mineral Springs Planning Board, and the citizens of the Town of Mineral 
Springs, expresses its profound sense of loss at the passing of Robert (Bob) Neill; and 
 
WHEREAS, we recognize Bob for his life of compassion, generosity and dedication to 
our community, and, most particularly, his service to the Town;   
 
WHEREAS, he served as a member of the Board of Adjustment and Planning Board 
from 2001 until 2013; in both capacities he exhibited integrity, commitment and 
understanding; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs is deeply grieved at the 
loss of its friend and public servant, but is grateful for the opportunity of having known and 
worked with him;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Mineral 
Springs, North Carolina, that we express to the family of Robert Neill our deepest and most 
heart-felt condolences; that, as a token of respect and esteem, this Resolution shall be 
incorporated into the permanent records of this Council. 
 
ADOPTED  this 12th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
 
       
Frederick Becker, III, Mayor  Mayor Pro Tem, Janet Critz 
 
 
       
Valerie Coffey, Councilwoman  Jerry Countryman, Councilman 
 
 
       
Lundeen Cureton, Councilwoman   Melody LaMonica, Councilwoman 
 
 
   
Peggy Neill, Councilwoman     
     
   Attest: 
     
       
  Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO, Town Clerk 



[1] 
 

 

UNION COUNTY EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 
Updated: June 2014 

 

I. MISSION STATEMENT 

  
 To provide leadership and support to minimize the impact of disasters and other 
 emergencies on the health, safety and property of the citizens of Union County, their 
 businesses and environment through a comprehensive, integrated emergency 
 management program. 
  
II. FOREWORD 
  
 The Union County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP or, the plan) has been developed 
 to address multiple hazards, which threaten our jurisdiction. Through the use of a 
 functional format, the plan encourages an Integrated Emergency Management System 
 (IEMS) approach to (emergencies); and fosters prompt, efficient and coordinated 
 response operations by elements of the emergency organization. IEMS requires a 
 system in which plans developed for one type of emergency are useful in other 
 emergency situations. 
  
 This document presents a basic plan, which serves as a summary document to the 
 supporting sections of the plan. These supporting sections define the roles of each 
 response agency thereby reducing confusion, chaos and conflict during an emergency. 
  
 This plan meets the legal requirements of North Carolina General Statutes, Article 1A, 
 Chapter 166-A. It provides the necessary elements to ensure that local government can 
 fulfill its legal responsibilities for emergency preparedness. 
  
 This Emergency Operations Plan, upon approval and adoption of the Union County 
 Board of Commissioners, replaces and supersedes all previously adopted emergency 
 plans. 
  
III. PURPOSE 
  
 This plan predetermines actions to be taken by the governmental agencies and private 
 entities of Union County in order to reduce the vulnerability of people and property 
 during emergencies, and to establish capabilities for responding effectively to the actual 
 occurrence of an emergency. 
 
IV. SCOPE 
 
 This plan is designed to address natural and manmade hazards that could adversely 
 affect the County. The plan applies to all County government departments and agencies 
 which are tasked to provide assistance in an emergency situation or during a disaster. It 
 describes the fundamental policies, strategies, and general concept of operations to be 
 used in control of the emergency from its onset through the post emergency phase. 
  
 



[2] 
 

 
 
 
V. SITUATION AND ASSUMPTIONS  
  
 A.     Situation 
  
 General description: 
  
 Union County is located in the North Carolina Emergency Management, Western Branch 
 and FEMA Region IV. Its geographic location is in the south central Piedmont section 
 of North Carolina. Stanly and Cabarrus Counties border Union County on the north, 
 east by Anson County, south by South Carolina, and west by Mecklenburg County. 
  
 The current population of the County is estimated at 210,292*. Population density 
 is 315.7 persons per square mile**. The City of Monroe is Union County's largest 
 municipality and serves as the county seat. Union County has a total area of 637 square 
 miles. The average year round temperature is 61 degrees Fahrenheit**, with an average 
 rainfall of 53 inches**. (*Source US Census 2010) [**Source NC Department of 
 Commerce EDIS 2009] 
  
 The following services, which may have expanded duties during emergencies, are 
 provided by Union County: 
  
  - Administration Services 
  - Animal Control 
 - Building Code Enforcement  
 - Communications 
 - Community Services 
  - Cooperative Extension Service 
 -           Emergency Management 
            - Emergency Medical Services  
 - Emergency Services 
 - Fire Departments 
 - Fire Marshal  
 - Geographical Information Systems 
 - Growth Management 
 - Human Resources  
          -           Human Services 
  - Information Technology 
 - Law Enforcement 
  - Planning  
 - Public Health 
  - Public Information 
  - Public Library 
 - Public Works 
  - Schools 
  - Social Services 
 - Tax Services 
 
   



[3] 
 

 Major roads:  
  - US 74 
 - US 601 
 - NC 200 
 - NC 218 
 - NC 75 
 - NC 84 
 - NC 16 
  
 Railroad:  
 - CSX 
  
 Major pipelines: 
 - NC Natural Gas 
   
 Airports:  
 - The Charlotte Monroe Executive Airport can handle light commercial aircraft. The 
 nearest commercial airline service is Charlotte Douglas International, a distance of 
 approximately 30 miles. The Charlotte Monroe Executive Airport has a 5500 x 100 feet 
 runway with an elevation of 679 feet. 
   
 Hazards: 
 - The County is exposed to many hazards, all of which have the potential to disrupt 
 the community, cause damage and create casualties. Potential hazards (natural, 
 technological and national security) for the County are: 
  
 - Aircraft Accidents (civilian / military) 
 - Civil Disorder / Rioting / Vandalism 
 - Dam Failure 
 - Drought / Extreme Heat 
 - Earthquake 
 - Floods 
 - Forest or Wildland Fires 
 - Hazardous Materials (Transportation Incidents / Fixed Facility Incidents /   
  Unidentified Spills / Dumping) 
 - Hurricanes  
 - Landfill Fires 
 - Large Structural Fires 
 - Mass Casualty 
 - National Security Emergency 
 - Other / Unknown (biological, disease, etc.) 
 - Power Failure 
  - Railroad Accidents 
 - Sabotage / Terrorist Activity 
 - Severe Bridge Damage 
 - Severe Thunderstorms  
 - Tornadoes 
 - Waste / Waste Water Spills 
 - Winter Storms / Severe Cold Weather 
  
  



[4] 
 

B. Assumptions 
  
 The occurrence of one or more of the emergency events listed above could impact 
 Union County severely and include several of the following possibilities: 
  
 - Loss of electric service 
 - Loss of water distribution and storage system 
 - Loss of part or all of waste treatment systems 
 - Severance of road / highway network 
 - Evacuation of people from the County 
 - Necessity for mass care (shelter) and feeding operations 
 - Need for debris clearance and removal 
 - Multiple injuries and fatalities 
 - Drastic increase in media attention 
 - Damage to the communications and telephone networks 
 - Severe economic impact 
 - Increased number of vectors (insects) 
 - Need for official public information and rumor control 
 - Need for State and / or Federal assistance 
 - Re-entry of essential personnel and equipment 
 - Re-entry of the public into damaged / evacuated areas 
 - Damage to vital records 
 - Need for damage assessment 
 - Need for auxiliary power 
 - Need for coordination of solicited / unsolicited goods 
 - Contamination of private wells 
 - Exhaustion of local resources 
 - Lack of depth of staffing 
 - Loss of facilities vital to maintaining essential services 
 - Environmental impact on wildlife, natural resources and agriculture destruction 
 - Need for management of reconstruction 
 - Need for coordination of staged resources 
 - Damage to historical sites 
 - Isolation of populations 
 - Presidential Disaster Declaration 
  
 The occurrence of one or more of the previously listed emergency events  could result in 
 a catastrophic emergency situation which would overwhelm local and state 
 resources. 
  
 It is necessary for the County and municipalities to plan for and to carry out 
 coordinated emergency response and short term recovery operations utilizing local 
 resources; however, it is likely that outside assistance would be necessary in most major 
 emergency situations affecting the County. 
  
 Emergency and disaster occurrences could result in disruption of government 
 functions. This necessitates that all levels of local government and departments develop 
 and maintain general operating guidelines to ensure continuity of government. These 
 procedures will address depth of staffing, line of succession and mode of operation. 
  



[5] 
 

 Most natural emergencies will leave at least some part of the County isolated and on its 
 own for a period of time. Families should be encouraged to train and prepare for these 
 events.  
   
 
VI. CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
  
 A. Preparedness 
  
 As required by North Carolina General Statute 166A-19.15, it is the responsibility  of 
 County/City government to organize and plan for the protection of life and property from 
 the effects of hazardous events or emergencies. 
  
 Facilities vital to the operation of county and local government have been  identified. 
 These facilities will receive priority for restoration of service. 
  
 Planning and training are necessary and integral parts of emergency and  disaster 
 preparation and must be a prerequisite to effective emergency operation. 
  
 Coordination with adjoining jurisdictions is essential when events occur that impact 
 beyond county or jurisdictional borders. 
  
 It is the responsibility of the elected officials to ensure that all legal documents of  both a 
 public and private nature recorded by designated officials be protected and preserved in 
 accordance with existing laws, statutes and ordinances. 
  
 B. Response 
  
 In significant emergencies, the Emergency Operations Center (EOC), following policies 
 set forth by the Policy & Steering Control Group, will perform the following functions: 
  
 - Serves as the command center for County Government. 
 - Serves as the operations center for chief elected or appointed government  
  officials, emergency operations staff and other essential representatives. It is the  
  nerve center for government officials away from an emergency scene to   
  allow for proper coordination with, and support of the Incident Commander (IC) at 
  the scene. 
 - Serves as the information hub. 
  
 The EOC will normally follow five stages of response to an emergency or  disaster: 
 
  - Alerting and notification of the general public and emergency response   
  personnel. 
  - Warning the public in the event there is not time for alerting and notifying the  
  general public. 
  - Protecting the citizens and property by primarily providing services such as  
  security, fire protection, emergency medical care, search and rescue, evacuation  
  from the emergency area and possibly sheltering. The primary concern is   
  for the life-safety of the community and immediate treatment of those who may  
  be injured. 



[6] 
 

 - Providing for the public welfare by caring for the people during and immediately  
  after the emergency and assessing damage. 
  - Restoration of essential services to include restoring utility service, clearing and  
  repairing roads, removing debris from the emergency scene, and    
  possibly shoring up weakened structures. 
  
 The EOC will be staffed and operated as the situation dictates and in accordance 
 with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and the Incident Command 
 System (ICS). When activated, ranking representatives from a number of local 
 government, private sector and volunteer organizations will provide information, data 
 and recommendations to the Policy & Steering Control Group. 
  
 When an emergency situation develops, the senior elected official, or the  designee of 
 the jurisdiction (as defined in GS 14-288.1), may declare a State of Emergency within 
 the jurisdiction (or a part thereof) and begin implementing emergency procedures. (See 
 Authorizations and Authorities Section) 
  
 The County Manager and County Emergency Operations Center IC will coordinate 
 county resources. The Mayor, or his / her designee, will coordinate and control the 
 resources of the municipality. 
  
 Union County’s Public Information Officer (PIO) will utilize all available media outlets for 
 the dissemination of emergency information to the public. 
  
 Should local government resources prove to be inadequate during emergency 
 operations; requests for assistance will be made to other jurisdictions, higher levels of 
 government, and / or other agencies in accordance with existing mutual-aid agreements 
 and understandings. 
  
 Requests for State and Federal resources must be made through the Union County 
 Emergency Operations Center to the N.C. Division of Emergency Management. 
  
 The Federal Response Plan establishes the basis for fulfilling the Federal  government’s 
 role in providing response and recovery assistance to a state and its affected local 
 governments impacted by a significant disaster, which results in a required Federal 
 response. 
  
 Under the Federal Response Plan, departments and agencies having various 
 authorities and resources have been assigned primary and support responsibilities for 
 various Emergency Support Functions. These Emergency Support Functions will work in 
 concert with State Agencies to provide the needed resource(s). 
  
 Under the provisions of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 
 Assistance Act, a Federal Coordinating Officer will be appointed as the President’s 
 representative to coordinate overall delivery of Federal assistance. Federal departments 
 and agencies have been assigned missions to provide assistance directly to the State, 
 under the overall direction of the Federal Coordinating Officer. 
  
  
 
 



[7] 
 

 C. Recovery 
  
 The authority by which it was proclaimed shall declare termination of a State of 
 Emergency.  (See Authorizations and Authorities Section) 
 
 D. Mitigation 
  
 Following any major emergency event, a critique will be held to evaluate the jurisdiction’s 
 response to the event.  A critique will include the following issues related  specifically to 
 recovery: 
  
 - Mitigation of potential problems through use of Hazard Mitigation Grants 
 - Plans and procedures revision based on lessons learned 
 - Unmet needs status 
 - Resource Management and Management of Donated Goods 
 - Interagency Cooperation 
 - Damage Survey Report process and documentation 
 - Training needs 
 - Restoration of infrastructure and Business recovery 
 
VII. PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE 
  
 Each agency of local government is responsible for the development of general 
 operating guidelines in the support of this plan. 
  
 The County Manager mandates the development and annual review of this plan by all 
 officials involved and will coordinate necessary revision efforts through the Emergency 
 Management Department. That shall include a critique of the actions taken in support of 
 the plan following any event requiring implementation of the plan. 
  
 This plan shall be exercised annually in lieu of actual response to real emergency 
 events. 
  
VIII. ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES  
  
 A.  Purpose 
  
  This section tasks departments within local government with emergency  functions in 
 addition to their normal duties. Each department is responsible for  developing and 
 maintaining their own emergency General Operating Guideline(s) (GOGs). Specific 
 responsibilities are outlined below under the section titled Assignment of 
 Responsibilities. Responsibilities for certain organizations that are not a part of local 
 government are also outlined. 
  
 B.  Organization 
  

1. Policy & Steering Control Group: 

  The Union County Emergency Policy / Administration Group consist of the  
  following: 



[8] 
 

  - Union County Board of Commissioners Chairperson 
  - County Manager 
  - Staff Attorney 
  - Emergency Services Executive Director 
  - Designees as necessary 
 

2.  Municipalities Emergency Policy & Steering Control Group may 
consist of the following: 

  - Mayor 
  - Board Members 
  - Manager / Clerk 
  - Police Chief 
  - Designees as necessary 
  
  3.  Emergency Operations Center: 
  - EOC IC 
  - Command Staff that may consist of a PIO, Safety Officer (SO), Liaison  
   Officer(s) (LNO), EOC Administrative Support Unit, and various special  
   staff positions. 
  - General Staff consisting of an Operations Section, Planning / Intelligence  
   Section, Logistics Section, and Finance / Administration Section. 
  - The EOC is tasked with the implementation of Policy & Steering Control  
   Group decisions. 
  
  C. Assignment of Individual Responsibilities: 

1. Policy & Steering Control Group 
 

a. Chairperson, Union County Board of Commissioners 

  - Carries out appropriate provisions of the North Carolina General  
  Statutes, in addition to local ordinances relating to emergencies. 

   - Declares or terminates a State of Emergency for Union County. 
   - Executes the Union County Emergency Operations Plan. 

  - Implements other measures as necessary to provide for the  
  protection of life and property. (See checklist). 

  - Coordinates emergency response actions with the Elected   
  Officials from adjoining jurisdictions. 

   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

b. County Manager 
   

  - Serves as lead and primary point-of-contact for the Policy &  
  Steering Control Group. 

  - Implements the County Emergency Plan by the authority of the  
  County Chairperson. (See checklist). 

   - Keeps government functioning throughout the emergency. 
   - Develops plans to provide governmental services throughout the  
    emergency. 



[9] 
 

  - In cooperation with County Staff Attorney’s Office, manages  
  contract control as needed to carry out emergency operations. 

  - Upon approval of the Chairperson of the Board of Commissioners, 
  or his / her successor, initiates Declaration of State of Emergency  
  and supporting documents. Requests State of Emergency status  
  and establishes curfews as necessary. 

  - Serves as liaison with local municipalities to ensure continuity and  
  coordination throughout the incident. 

  - Directs county agencies to develop and continually update   
  emergency plans and General Operating Guidelines (GOGs) to  
  respond to emergencies. 

  - Supports the Emergency Services Department in the   
  development of periodic exercises and tests of the    
  emergency systems. 

   - Functions as the official spokesperson. 
  - Coordinates emergency response actions with County Managers  

  from adjoining jurisdictions. 
   - Authorizes requests for state and federal aid. 

  - Provides personnel to support EOC operations in accordance with 
  EOC Plan and GOGs. 

   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

c. Staff Attorney 
  

  - Prepares proclamations, emergency ordinances and other legal  
    documents. 

  - Advises the EOC IC and Policy & Steering Group on legality and /  
  or legal implications of contemplated emergency actions and / or  
  policies. 

  - Develops rules, regulations and laws required for acquisition and / 
  or control of critical resources. 

  - Develops the necessary ordinances and regulations to provide  
  legal basis for evacuation and / or population control. 

  - In cooperation with the District Attorney, commences civil and  
  criminal proceedings as necessary and appropriate to implement  
  and enforce emergency actions. 

  - Maintains a liaison with state and municipal legal officials. 
  - Establishes areas of legal responsibility and / or potential liability. 
  - Assists in the preparation of agreements / contracts with   

  municipalities and other agencies to ensure compliance with state  
  and local ordinances. 

  - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

d. Mayors 
  
   Mayors may designate the Town / City Manager to carry out the functions 
   listed below: 
  



[10] 
 

  - Utilizes and commits municipal personnel, facilities and equipment 
  resources in support of Union County emergency     
  response operations, not to conflict with the town’s needs. 

  - Assesses needs of the municipalities and requests resources  
  through the County Emergency Operations Center (EOC). 

  - Carries out appropriate provisions of the North Carolina General  
  Statutes, in addition to local ordinances relating to emergencies. 

  - Mayor or Chairperson, or his / her designee, declares a State of  
  Emergency for the Municipality. 

   - Executes the Union County Emergency Operations Plan. (See  
    checklist). 

  - Implements other measures as necessary to provide for the  
  protection of life and property. 

   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

e. Emergency Services Executive Director 
  
   Serves as the liaison between the Policy & Steering Control Group and  
   the EOC: 
  

  - Ensures that the members of the Policy & Steering Control Group  
  are kept abreast of the situation and provides recommendations  
  as deemed appropriate. 

  - Provides personnel to support EOC operations in accordance with 
  the EOC Plan and GOGs to include the EOC Administrative  
  Support Staff Supervisor. 

   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   2.  Emergency Operations Center 

a. EOC Incident Commander 

  - Ensure incident safety. 
   - Obtain a briefing from the prior EOC IC and / or assess the  
    situation. 
   - Establish immediate priorities. 
   - Determine incident objectives and strategy(s) to be followed. 

  - Establish the level of organization needed, and continuously  
  monitor the operation and effectiveness of that organization. 

   - Manage planning meetings as required. 
   - Approve and implement the Incident Action Plan (IAP). 
   - Coordinate the activities of the Command and General Staff. 
   - Approve requests for additional resources or for the release of  
    resources. 
   - Approve the use of students, volunteers, and auxiliary personnel. 
   - Authorize the release of information to the news media. 
   - Order demobilization of the incident when appropriate. 
   - Ensure incident after-action reports are complete. 



[11] 
 

   - If a General Staff position is not activated, the EOC IC will have  
    responsibility for that functional activity. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

b. Public Information Officer 
  
   The Public Information Officer is responsible for developing information  
   about the incident for the news media, incident personnel, and other  
   appropriate agencies and organizations. Major responsibilities include: 
  
   - Determine from the EOC IC any limits on information to be   
    released. 
   - Develop information for use in media briefings. 
   - Obtain EOC IC’s approval of media news releases. 
   - Conduct periodic media briefings. 
   - Arrange for tours and other interviews or briefings that may be  
    required. 
   - Monitor and forward media information that may be useful to  
    incident planning. 
    - Maintain current information summaries and / or displays on the  
    incident. 
    - Make information about the incident available to incident   
    personnel. 
    - Participate in the planning meeting. 
    - Develops and maintains general operating guidelines for public  
    information operations during emergency and disaster operations. 

  - Maintains current inventories of public information materials to  
  include weather preparedness, family preparedness, etc. 

    - Coordinates all County / City media releases with appropriate  
    agencies or jurisdictions during an emergency situation. 

  - Provides for rumor control and emergency instructions and directs 
  information for the public at the time of the disaster or emergency. 

    - Develops media advisories for the public. 
  -           Ensures that all sources of information being received are   

  authenticated and verified for accuracy. 
  - When required, establishes a Joint Information Center (JIC) for  

  use by multiple agencies and/or jurisdictions. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

c. Safety Officer 
  
   The Safety Officer’s function is to identify, assess and/or    
   anticipate hazardous and unsafe situations, and to develop and   
   recommend measures for assuring personnel safety. Working through the 
   chain of command, the Safety Officer will correct unsafe situations. Under 
   OSHA regulation 1910.120, the Safety Officer function is required by law  
   at the tactical operations level on hazardous materials incidents. Major  
   responsibilities include:  
  



[12] 
 

   - Participate in planning meetings. 
    - Identify hazardous situations associated with the incident and  
    make sure that problems are taken care of prior to an accident. 
    - Assign assistants qualified to evaluate special hazards. 

  - Review the IAP for safety implications and prepare incident  
  specific safety message or plan based on hazards, problems, or  
  agency requirements. 

    - Exercise emergency authority to stop and prevent unsafe acts. 
  - Initiate preliminary investigation of accidents that have occurred  

  within the incident area. 
    - Review and approve the Medical Plan. 
    - Ensure safety messages and briefings are made as needed. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

d. Liaison Officer 
  
   The Liaison Officer is an individual assigned to an incident from an  
   assisting or cooperating agency. The Liaison Officer must be given  
   authority to make decisions on matters affecting that agency’s   
   participation at the incident. There can be a Liaison Officer from each  
   agency or agencies can pool their resources and provide a single Liaison  
   Officer. Major responsibilities include: 
  

  - Ensure that all of their agency resources have completed check-in 
  at the incident. 

    - Obtain briefing from the Planning / Intelligence Section Chief or  
    EOC IC. 

  - Inform their agency personnel on the incident that the Agency  
  Liaison Officer position has been filled. 

    - Attend planning meetings as required. 
  - Provide input to the planning process on the use of agency  

  resources unless resource technical specialists are assigned from  
  the agency. 

  - Cooperate fully with the EOC IC and the Command and General  
  Staff on the agency’s involvement at the incident. 

    - Oversee the well-being and safety of agency personnel assigned  
    to the incident. 

  - Advise the Planning / Intelligence Section Chief or the EOC IC of  
  any special agency needs, requirements or agency restrictions. 

    - Report to agency dispatch or headquarters on a prearranged  
    schedule. 

  - Ensure that all agency personnel and equipment are properly  
    accounted for and or released prior to departure. 

  - Ensure that all required agency forms, reports, and documents are 
  completed prior to departure. 

  - Have a debriefing session with the Planning/Intelligence Section  
  Chief or EOC IC prior to departure. 

   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 

 



[13] 
 

e. EOC Administrative Support Staff Supervisor 
  
   Responsible for staffing the Citizen Services Phone Bank, the EOC  
   audiovisual control station, internet communication between the EOC and 
   NCEM and other identified EOC telephone lines: 
  

  - Responsible for manning the message control station and   
  managing all message control functions. 

    - Provide message couriers. 
    - Keep message boards updated. 
    - Perform other administrative support tasks as assigned. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

f. Operations Section Chief 
  
   The Operations Section Chief is responsible for managing all   
   tactical operations in support of the on-scene IC and the on-scene  
   Operations Section Chief. The IAP provides the necessary guidance. The 
   need to expand the Operations Section is generally dictated by the  
   number of tactical resources involved and is influenced by span of control 
   considerations. Major responsibilities include: 
  
   - Manage tactical operations. 
   - Ensure interaction is taking place with other agencies. 
   - Assist in the development of the operations portion of the IAP. 
    - Supervise the execution of the operations portion of the IAP. 
    - Maintain close contact with subordinate positions. 
    - Ensure safe tactical operations. 
    - Request additional resources to support tactical operations. 

  - Approve release of resources from active assignments (not  
  release from the incident). 

    - Make or approve expedient changes to the operations portion of  
    the IAP. 

  - Maintain close communications with the EOC IC and the on-scene 
  IC and Operations Section Chief. 

  - Decides when to expand or contract the size and make-up of the  
  Operations Section based upon the existing and projected needs  
  of the incident. 

    - Appoints designee for Air Operations during emergency    
    situations. 

  - Maintains an Activity Log and ensures documentation of   
  personnel and equipment used during the current operational  
  period. 

  - In cooperation with the Finance/Administration Section, keeps  
  accurate and detailed records of regular and overtime hours spent 
  responding to and recovering from the emergency. 

   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  

 



[14] 
 

g. Air Operations Branch Director  
   
   Reports to the Operations Section Chief: 
  

  - Develops and maintains general operating guidelines for air  
  operations during emergency situations. 

  - Coordinates aircraft operations during and following   
    emergency events. 

  - Provides for the priority clearance of runways at the Area Airport /  
    Airstrips. 

  - Determines capabilities and limitations of the Airport / Airstrip  
  facility to support aviation operations during emergencies. 

  - Coordinates with the FAA regarding the need to restrict air space  
  over the emergency area. 

  - Provides liaison with the National Transportation Safety Board and 
  the FAA in the event of a mass casualty aircraft accident. 

  - Coordinates with military officials in support of emergency-  
  related military flight operations at the airport. 

  - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
  Procedures. 

  
h. Planning / Intelligence Section Chief 

   
   The Planning / Intelligence Section Chief is responsible for    
   providing planning and status services for the incident. Under the   
   direction of the Planning / Intelligence Section Chief, the Planning /  
   Intelligence Section collects situation and resources status information,  
   evaluates it, and processes the information for use in developing the IAP  
   for each operational period. Dissemination of information can be in the  
   form of the IAP, formal briefings, or through map, electronic status  
   boards, or status board displays. Major responsibilities include: 
  

  - Collect and manage all incident-relevant operational data for use  
  by the EOC and the EOC IC. 

  - Provide input to the EOC IC and Operations Section Chief for use  
  in preparing the IAP. 

   - Supervise preparation of the IAP. 
   - Conduct and facilitate planning meetings. 
   - Reassign personnel to ICS organizational positions as needed  
    and appropriate.  
   - Establish information requirements and reporting schedules for  
    Planning / Intelligence Section units. 
    - Determine the need for specialized resources to support the  
    incident. 
    - Assemble and disassemble task forces and strike teams not  
    assigned to Operations Section Chief. 
    - Establish specialized data collection systems as necessary (e.g.,  
    weather). 
    - Assemble information on alternative strategies and contingency  
    plans. 
    - Provide periodic predictions on incident potential. 



[15] 
 

    - Report any significant changes in incident status. 
    - Compile and display incident status information. 
    - Oversee preparation of the Demobilization Plan. 
    - Incorporate Traffic, Medical, Communication Plans, and other  
    supporting material into the IAP.  
   - Develops Situation Reports as needed. 
   - Provides statistical data, demographics and projections for   
    populations at risk. 
   - Reviews intelligence information, determines its credibility and  
    predicts its influence on the situation. 
   - Initiates planning for recovery in the emergency area(s). 
   - Works with agencies to provide temporary housing. 
   - Maintains an Activity Log and ensures documentation of   
    personnel and equipment used during the emergency. (See FEMA 
    Equipment rate schedule). 
   - In cooperation with the Finance / Administration Section, keeps  
    accurate and detailed records of regular and overtime hours spent 
    responding to and recovering from the emergency. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   i. Logistics Section Chief 
  
   The Logistics Section Chief provides all incident support needs   
   with the exception of air logistics support. The Logistics Section is   
   responsible for providing facilities, transportation, communications,  
   supplies, equipment maintenance and fueling, food services for   
   responders, medical services for responders, and all off-incident   
   resources. The major responsibilities include: 
  
   - Manage all incident logistics. 
   - Provide logistical input to the EOC IC in preparing the IAP. 
   - Brief Logistics Branch Directors and Unit Leaders as needed. 
   - Identify anticipated and known incident service and support  
    requirements. 
   - Request additional resources as needed. 
   - Develop as required, the Communications, Medical, and traffic  
    plans. 
    - Oversee demobilization of the Logistics Section. 
    - Provides all EOC support needs. 
    - In cooperation with Volunteer Coordinator,     
    manages the donation of goods and services necessary to carry  
    out response and recovery efforts. 
    - Organizes and operates the County Receiving and Distribution  
    Point warehouse.  Identifies resources needed to operate   
    warehouse. 
    - Coordinates transportation resources in cooperation with the  
    Union  County Transport Department, Union County School  
    System (Bus Garage) and private sector agencies. 



[16] 
 

    - In cooperation with the Finance / Administration Section, keeps  
    accurate and detailed records of regular and overtime hours spent 
    responding to  and recovering from the emergency. 
    - Maintains an Activity Log and ensures documentation of   
    personnel and equipment used during the emergency. Precise  
    information is essential to meet requirements for reimbursement  
    by the state and federal governments. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   j. Finance / Administration Section Chief 
  
   The Finance / Administration Section Chief is responsible for   
   managing all financial aspects of an incident. Not all incidents will require  
   a Finance / Administration Section. Only when the involved agencies  
   have a specific need for finance services will the Section be activated.  
   Anytime there is a chance that the incident will be declared a State or  
   Federal Disaster the Finance / Administration Section will be activated.  
   Major responsibilities include: 
  
   - Manage all financial aspects of the incident. (Also see FEMA  
    Equipment rate schedule). 
   - Provide financial and cost analysis information as requested. 
   - Ensure compensation and claims functions are being addressed  
    relative to the incident. 
   - Gather pertinent information from briefings with responsible  
    agencies. 
   - Develop an operating plan for the Finance / Administration   
    Section; fill Section supply and support needs. 
   - Determine need to set up and operate an incident commissary. 
   - Meet with assisting and cooperating agency representatives as  
    needed. 
   - Maintain daily contact with agency(s) administrative headquarters  
    on finance matters. 
   - Ensure that all personnel and equipment time records are   
    accurately completed  and transmitted to home agencies,   
    according to policy. 
   - Provide financial input for demobilization planning. 
   - Ensure that all obligation documents initiated at the incident are  
    properly prepared and completed. 
   - Brief agency administrative personnel on incident-related financial  
    issues  needing attention or follow-up. 
    - Develops and maintains general operating guidelines for County  
    emergency financial record keeping during emergency situations. 
    - Assists the Tax Assessor with documentation of disaster damage  
    to County-owned facilities. 
    - Provides County budget information in support of the   
    Governor’s request for a Presidential Declaration of Disaster. 
    - Develops financial accounting procedures to assist local agencies  
    in recording and reporting their emergency expenses in the  
    establishment and management of post-disaster donated funds. 



[17] 
 

    - Coordinates County employee staffing to ensure county   
    government remains operational during the emergency. 
    - Ensures departments have available personnel to carry out  
    identified functions. 
    - Tracks documentation for compensation and claims for injury. 
    - Provides information on insurance coverage. 
    - Ensures the investigation of all accidents and prepares all   
    necessary claims.  
    - Keeps accurate and detailed records of regular and overtime  
    hours spent responding to and recovering from the emergency. 
    - Maintains an Activity Log and ensures documentation of   
    personnel and equipment used during the emergency.  Precise  
    information is essential to meet requirements for reimbursement  
    by the state and federal governments. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
  3. County Departments (those with specific roles and responsibilities are  
   listed in alphabetical order): 
   
   Common Responsibilities impacting all County Departments: 
   

-   Provide personnel and department resources to support EOC operations   
in accordance with this plan, its annexes, GOGs and as required by the 
EOC IC. 

 
   - In cooperation with the Administration Services, keep accurate   
   and detailed records of regular and overtime hours spent responding to  
   and recovering from the disaster or emergency. 
 
   - Maintain an Activity Log and ensure documentation of personnel,   
   equipment, and facilities used during a disaster or emergency. Precise  
   information is essential to meet requirements for reimbursement by the  
   state and federal governments. 
 
   - Develop and maintain GOGs for your department operations during  
   emergency or disaster events. 
 
   - Develop and maintain department plans to return operating as soon as  
   possible despite the effects of an emergency or disaster. 
 
  - Each agency or organization shall be responsible to manage their listed  
   responsibilities. 
  
  - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and Procedures. 
 
    
 
 
 
 



[18] 
 

   a. Administration Services / CFO, Executive Director 
    
   Serves as the Finance / Administration Section Chief in the EOC when  
   the Finance/Administration Section is activated by the EOC IC: 
 
   Provides support personnel for technical assistance with computer  
   equipment, telephone and Information Systems during emergency  
   activation. (See vital facilities): 
  
   - Provides for the protection of computerized vital records during  
    emergency events. 
   - Provides maps, charts and graphs to support emergency   
    operations. 
    - Supports mapping application during emergency operations. 
    - Provides demographic information during emergency operations. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
   
   b. Community Services Executive Director 

 
Serves as the Logistics Section Chief in the EOC when the Logistics 
Section is activated by the EOC/IC. 

 
Provides a technical specialist in the Planning / Intelligence 

 Section: 
 
   - Provides Union County with trained County Animal Response  
    Teams (CART). 
   - In cooperation with Union County Animal Control, assists in  
    protection actions as identified in the Union County Animal     
    Protection Plan. 
   - In cooperation with the Union County Public Information Officer,  
    provides protective action information to the public regarding  
    consumable goods and food supplies. 
   - Provides information on Agribusiness Operations to Human   
    Services and other appropriate agencies within the EOC. 

- Assists Damage Assessment Teams with agriculture damage  
  assessment. 

   - Provides information on Agribusiness Operations to Health or  
    Social Services and other appropriate agencies within the EOC. 
 

Plans for and provides educational and entertainment activities for long 
term shelties, EOC personnel, and others, as appropriate: 

     
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
 
    
 
 
 



[19] 
 

   c. Emergency Services Executive Director 
  
                                   Provides EOC IC and Planning / Intelligence Section Chief when   
   needed: 
   
   - Evaluates incidents and determines if the EOC should be   
    activated and at what  level. 
    - Controls rumors by keeping the public informed through the PIO. 
    - Ensures that emergency operations comply with local ordinances  
    and State general statutes. 
    - Ensures law enforcement, fire/rescue, EMS operations are carried 
    out in accordance with established plans and procedures. 
    - Evaluates the community situation and reports information   
    regarding special events, activities and occurrences when needed 
    to the County Manager. 
    - Determines needs and requests resources as necessary.  
    - Establishes communications with affected areas. 
    - Receives, evaluates and disseminates operational information. 
   - Maintains liaison with municipal, county, state and federal   
    agencies as necessary to support the operation. 
    - Ensures that required records and documents of personnel and  
    equipment used during the emergency are maintained. 
    - Implements direction, control, coordination and policy making  
    functions as necessary to provide for optimum protection of public  
    health and safety within the jurisdiction. 
    - Develops and maintains plans and GOGs for emergency   
    management operations during emergency and disaster   
    situations. 
    - Develops and maintains a current Emergency Notification   
    Directory (END) of emergency operation personnel. 
    - Provides for delivery of programs to properly train the emergency  
    management organizations. 
    - Maintains a current list of available resources. 
    - Coordinates the procurement of resources requested from   
    municipalities within the County and directs aid to areas where  
    needed. 
    - Coordinates with private industry for use of privately owned  
    resources. 
    - Requests additional resources from the State in those cases  
    where county resources cannot meet resource or recovery   
    requirements. 
    - Coordinates exercises and tests of the emergency systems within  
    the jurisdiction. 
    - Alerts and activates, as necessary, the County Emergency  
    Management Organization when informed of an emergency within 
    the County. 
    - Submits necessary emergency information and reports to the  
    proper agencies during emergency and disaster events. 
    - Maintains liaison with municipal, county, state and federal   
    agencies as necessary to support operations. 



[20] 
 

    - Serves as the Community Emergency Coordinator as defined by  
    SARA Title III and the Local Emergency Planning Committee. 
    - Coordinates emergency response actions with the Emergency  
    Management Coordinators in adjoining jurisdictions. 
    - Serves as advisor for emergency operations during an emergency 
    or disaster. 
    - Maintains operational readiness of County EOC. 
    - Performs hazard analysis to determine mitigation plans and  
    response activities. 
    - Identifies and arranges suitable shelter locations. 
    - Assists in the dissemination of warning information. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
              Establishes and maintains the communications network for two-  
    way communications between the EOC and the field emergency   
   response resources: 
  
   - Provides for the dissemination of warning information to   
    emergency response personnel. 
   - Coordinates the Warning and Notification process for the affected  
    population of any existing or impending emergency or disaster. 
   - Oversees Amateur Radio operations within the EOC. 
   - Identifies radio repair capabilities and maintenance operations for  
    emergency repairs. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   Designates the Assistant EOC/IC. 
   - Coordinates county-wide fire and hazmat operations. 
   - Serves as the County Radiological Officer. 
   - Identifies fire service requirements and requests mutual aid as  
    required. 
   - Prioritizes mission requests for out-of-county mutual aid resources 
    and assigns resources as appropriate. 
   - Provides reconnaissance of emergency scene(s). 
   - Recommends to the Operations Section Chief staging areas for  
    out-of-county mutual aid units and assigns to appropriate fire  
    district(s). 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and   
    Procedures. 
       
              d. Growth Management Executive Director 
  

Coordinates damage assessment teams conducting field surveys and 
assures teams are properly trained and equipped: 

  
   - Collects data, prepares damage assessment reports and forwards 
    reports to the EOC. 
   - Assists the Emergency Management Coordinator and other  
    county or municipal agency representatives who are conducting  



[21] 
 

    recovery operations in prioritizing repairs and restoration of  
    affected facilities. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
   
   e. Human Resources Executive Director 
  

Serves as the Finance / Administration Deputy Section Chief in the EOC 
when the Finance / Administration Section is activated by the EOC 
Director: 

  
   - Provide the Risk Manager to serve as the Safety Officer on  
    the Command Staff in the EOC when the Safety Officer is   
    activated by the EOC IC. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
     
   f. Human Services Executive Director 
  

Coordinates the planning process and provides technical support for 
response to Bio-Terrorism incidents: 

 
   - Coordinates health care for emergency shelters, including mass  
    care facilities. 
   - Coordinates with State water supply authorities to expedite  
    emergency public water supply. 
   - Provides continuous health inspections and immunizations, when  
    appropriate, to evaluate, detect, prevent and control   
    communicable diseases. 
   - Coordinates environmental health activities for waste disposal,  
    refuse, food, water control and vector / vermin control and   
    sanitation. 
   - Coordinates with the Social Services Director in the identification  
    of special needs populations. 
   - Provides for inspections of mass care facilities to assure proper  
    sanitation practices are followed. 
   - Coordinates with the proper authorities to establish a temporary  
    morgue, if necessary, following an emergency or a disaster. 
   - Provides a public health nurse at all Disaster Assistance Centers. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
 

Coordinates and directs emergency shelter operations with local Red 
Cross Chapter and Superintendent of Union County Schools: 

 
   - Contacts medical / health care facilities (e.g. nursing homes, rest  
    homes, etc.) to encourage development of emergency procedures 
    and adequate  coordination with appropriate agencies. 
   - Coordinates with the Health Director concerning needs for special  
    needs population. 



[22] 
 

   - Establishes and provides shelter management staffing for Public  
    and Special Needs Shelters, including coordination of public  
    health and medical care needs of victims. 
   - Provides training for shelter managers for Public and Special  
    Needs Shelters. 
   - Coordinates with Health, Mental Health and other volunteer / non- 
    volunteer agencies, both public and private, to provide support  
    personnel during sheltering. 
   - Coordinates transition of emergency shelter operations with Red  
    Cross Management. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
 
   g. Public Works Executive Director 

 
Coordinates with County and Municipal agencies for the restoration of 
public sewer and water systems: 

  
    -  Responsible for planning and overseeing all debris clearance  
    operations. 
   - Advises Policy / Administration Group regarding debris clearance  
    and burning, waiver of permits, etc. 
   - Responsible for maintenance and upkeep of all fire hydrants not  
    maintained by  municipalities. Will maintain records and make  
    notifications to respective fire departments of all hydrants that are  
    out of service. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   h. Sheriff 
  
   Develops and maintains general operating guidelines for law enforcement 
   operations during emergency and disaster situations: 
  
   - Provides Direction and Coordination for law enforcement   
    operations. 
   - When requested by the EOC IC, provides an Operations Section  
    Chief to the EOC IC for law enforcement incidents upon activation  
    of the EOC. 
   - Anticipates resources needed to support law enforcement   
    activities during emergencies and plans for timely resource  
    requests. 
   - Coordinates search and recovery operations for missing or lost  
    persons 
   - Coordinates security for the EOC, damaged areas, vital facilities  
    and equipment, staging areas and shelter operations as needed. 
   - Assists Communications with the Warning and Notification   
    process for the affected population of any existing or impending  
    emergency. 
   - Coordinates traffic control with State Highway Patrol and other  
    agencies throughout the county during operations. 



[23] 
 

   - Mans identified traffic control points to initiate traffic control. 
   - Directs the evacuation of citizens and serves as evacuation  
    manager. 
   - Functions as, or designates the official Public Information Officer  
    for law  enforcement operations. 
   - During shelter operations, provides for the use of animal control  
    resources to assist persons evacuating with domestic animals. 
   - Provides for continuation of animal and rabies control during the  
    emergency period. 
    - Coordinates efforts with other agriculture agencies for the needs  
    of large farm animals during emergency situations. 
    - Assists the County Animal Response Team (CART) in   
    implementing their animal protection plan. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
     
   i. Tax Services Executive Director 
  
   Develops and maintains general operating guidelines for County tax  
   operations and records protection during emergency situations: 
  
   - Assists the Growth Management Executive Director in all damage  
    assessment activities. 
   - Provides property tax information assistance for applicants at  
    Disaster Applications Centers. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
    
   4. First Responder Organizations 
 
   a. Municipal Law Enforcement 
  
   Responsible for monitoring and controlling local traffic control points for  
   regional evacuations affecting the municipality: 
 
   - Identifies local emergency evacuation routes from high hazard  
    areas. 
   - Ensures notification of County EOC of any street closures within  
    the jurisdiction. 
   - Anticipates resources needed to support local law enforcement  
    activity during emergencies and plans for timely resource   
    requests. 
   - Assists in notifications and warning of the general public, primarily  
    in their respective jurisdiction. 
   - Provides security of homes, businesses and property in damaged  
    areas. 
   - Assists with initial impact assessment. 
   - Assists with re-entry of evacuees into damaged areas. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
 



[24] 
 

b. Fire Departments 
  
   When requested by the EOC IC, provides an Operations Section Chief to  
   the EOC IC for fire or life-safety incidents upon activation of the EOC: 
  
   - Assists law enforcement with Warning and Notification of the  
    affected population of an existing or impending emergency. 

- Provides field information and intelligence reports to the EOC. 
   - Plans for coordination of firefighting and rescue activities   
    throughout the county during emergencies. 
   - Assists in Search and Rescue operations. 
   - Provides support personnel to assist in traffic control. 
   - Provides Direction and Coordination during hazardous materials  
    incidents. 
   - Provides fire protection for shelters. 
   - Identifies equipment and manpower limitations and develops  
    mutual aid agreements for the procurement of needed resources  
    during emergency and disaster events. 
   - Assists with emergency debris removal (cut & shove) to allow for  
    emergency vehicle response. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   c. Emergency Medical Services Director 
  
   Coordinates county-wide EMS operations: 
  
   - Provides reconnaissance of emergency scene(s). 
   - Coordinates medical attention and transportation of injured  
    victims. 
   - Coordinates with the Human Services Executive Director to  

    determine emergency transportation needs for special needs  
    populations. 
   - Serves as liaison to emergency personnel at Union Regional  
    Medical Center (URMC). 
   - Establishes access and egress traffic patterns for ambulances and 
    other authorized vehicles. 
   - Activates and manages the Mass Casualty Plan as necessary. 
   - Coordinates with area hospitals concerning receipt of mass  
    casualties during emergency and disaster events. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
 
   5. Volunteer Organizations 
 
   a. American Red Cross Executive Director 
   
   Provides personnel to support functions in the Logistics Section and  
   Operations Support & Coordination Section during an emergency: 
  



[25] 
 

   - Responsible for opening and staffing mass care shelters in  
    cooperation with Division of Social Services and the   
    Union County Board of Education. 
   - Completes other duties as outlined in the Memorandum of   
    Understanding with Union County and the Union County Board of  
    Education. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   b. ARES / RACES Emergency Coordinator 
   
   Provides personnel to support EOC operations in accordance with EOC  
   Plan and GOGs: 
  
   - Develops and maintains a list of resources that may be used  
    during emergency. 
   - Transmits and receives emergency traffic as necessary during  
    emergency events. 
   - Relocates radio equipment to alternate Emergency Operations  
    Center if necessary. 
   - Maintains a message log for all emergency traffic requests. 
   - Coordinates with other amateur radio operators to establish and  
    support post-emergency communications. 
   - Reports communications transmissions to the Operations Officer. 
   - Provides emergency communications at shelters and other sites  
    as needed. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
 
   e. United Way of Central Carolinas, Inc. 
   
   Provides personnel to support EOC operations in accordance with EOC  
   Plan and GOGs: 
 
   - Develop a Volunteer Center that will support Union County during  
    an emergency or disaster. 
    - When directed by the EOC IC, open and operate the Volunteer  
    Center in support of Union County EOC during an emergency or  
    disaster. 
    - Develop a Donations Management Center that will support Union  
    County during an emergency or disaster. 
    - When directed by the EOC IC, open and operate the Donations  
    Management Center in support of Union County EOC during an  
    emergency or disaster. 
    - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
    
 
 
 



[26] 
 

  6. Other Organizations 
 
   a. Mental Health  
    
   Coordinates with Human Services Executive Director to provide crisis  
   counseling, when necessary, during emergency situations: 
 
   - Provides for a 24-hour crisis line during periods of emergency. 
   - Maintains and provides information pertaining to Mental Health  
    resources that may be utilized during emergency     
    situations. 
   - Plans for sheltering Special Needs populations within the scope of 
    their expertise. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   b. Superintendent of Schools 
   
   Develops and maintains general operating guidelines for the safety and  
   protection of students, faculty and other personnel during emergency  
   situations: 
  
   - Coordinates evacuation and transportation operations for students 
    during emergency situations. 
   - Provide personnel and department resources to support EOC  
    operations in accordance with this plan, its annexes, GOGs and  
    as required by the EOC IC. 
    - In cooperation with the Administration Services, keep   
    accurate and detailed records of regular and overtime hours spent 
    responding to and recovering from the disaster or emergency. 
   - Maintain an Activity Log and ensure documentation of personnel,  
    equipment, and facilities used during a disaster or emergency.  
    Precise information is essential to meet requirements for   
    reimbursement by the state and federal governments. 
    - Develop and maintain GOGs for your agency operations during  
    emergency or disaster events. 
    - Develop and maintain plans to return operating as soon as  
    possible despite the effects of an emergency or disaster. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
   c. Medical Examiner 
   
   By law, Medical Examiners are responsible for the dead: 
  
   - In the event of a Mass Fatalities Incident, operations will be  
    coordinated by the Medical Examiner working in cooperation with  
    the Emergency Management Coordinator and where designated,  
    the Mortuary Response Team’s Coordinator. 



[27] 
 

   - The local funeral directors will serve as an assist group to the  
    Medical Examiner, by supplying equipment, vehicles and   
    personnel as available. 
   - Additional duties are also found in the various Annexes and  
    Procedures. 
  
IIX.  DIRECTION AND COORDINATION 
  
 A. Purpose 
  
 This section outlines the Direction and Coordination guidelines for emergency operations 
 and identifies the personnel, facilities and resources that will be utilized in the 
 coordinated response activities 
 
 B. Situation and Assumptions 
  
  1.  Situation 
  
  Many hazards exist within or threaten the County, which have the potential to  
  cause emergencies of great magnitude. These threats warrant centralization of  
  the operations. 
  
  Traditionally, municipalities do not open and operate municipal EOC’s during a  
  county-wide or regional emergency. Consequently, municipalities normally  
  depend on Direction and Coordination from the County during times of an  
  emergency 
  
  The County Emergency Operations Center serves as the central Direction and  
  Coordination point for countywide emergency response activities. 
  
  The County Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is located in the Union County  
  Government Center, Monroe, NC. 
  
  Municipalities may utilize facilities within their jurisdiction as EOC’s and the  
  County may provide staff as the situation dictates. 
  
  The County and / or Municipality EOC’s will be activated upon the threat or  
  occurrence of a major emergency.  Designated personnel will report   
  to their EOC in a timely fashion. 
  
  2.  Assumptions 
  
  All municipalities will not likely send a representative to the County EOC. 
  
  It is assumed that municipalities will maintain communications with the County  
  EOC via daily briefings, telephone, radio or fax. 
  
  Municipalities will act in unison with the County on such issues as proclamations, 
  security and public information. 
  
  



[28] 
 

 C. Concept of Operations 
  
  1.  General 
  
  Direction and Coordination of normal day-to-day emergencies of single agency  
  response is performed by the senior officer on-scene. (i.e. law enforcement, fire,  
  rescue, EMS). This person is designated as Incident Commander. Multi-agency  
  responses are done in accordance with local ordinances, policies and   
  procedures. Response forces in Union County will utilize the Incident Command  
  System (ICS). 
  
  Municipalities within the County may exercise independent Direction and   
  Coordination of their emergency resources, outside resources assigned to the  
  municipality by the County Emergency Operations Center, and resources   
  secured through existing mutual aid agreements with other municipalities. All  
  jurisdictions within the County will submit all requests for state or federal   
  assistance to the County Emergency Services Agency, or if activated, the  
  County EOC. (NCGS  Article 1A, Chapter 166-A;19.15(a)). 
  
  Activating the County EOC providing centralized county direction and control is  
  desirable when one or more of the following situations occur: 
  
  - There exists an imminent threat to the safety or health of the public. 
  - Extensive multi-agency or jurisdiction response and coordination is  
   necessary to resolve or recover from an emergency situation. 
  - Local resources are inadequate or depleted and significant mutual aid  
   resources must be utilized to resolve the emergency situation. 
  - The emergency affects multiple political jurisdictions within the County  
   which are relying on the same resources to resolve the emergency  
   situation. 
  - Local emergency ordinances are implemented to control the emergency  
   situation. 
  - The type and magnitude of any emergency event occurring in Union  
   County or a municipality within the County will dictate the need to activate 
   the EOC. 
  - The Chairperson of the Board of Commissioners, the County Manager,  
   his designee, or the Emergency Services Executive Director, or his  
   designee, may activate the Union County EOC. 
  - The Mayor, or his designee, will normally activate a municipal EOC. 
  - Emergency operations and coordination at all levels of government will be 
   carried out according to supporting General Operating Guidelines. 
  - Notification of County EOC personnel is the responsibility of the   
   Emergency Services Agency. 
  - Operational readiness of the County EOC is the responsibility of the  
   Emergency Services Executive Director or his designee who will serve as 
   EOC IC. 
  - Operational readiness of Municipal Emergency Operations Centers is the  
   responsibility of the Mayor or his / her designee. 
     - Administrative decisions regarding food supplies and other incidental  
   needs for the County EOC during activation is the responsibility of the  
   Logistics Chief. Administrative decisions regarding individual   



[29] 
 

   municipalities are the responsibility of the Town Mayor or his / her   
   designee. 
  - Upon activation of any municipal EOC, the municipality will   
   establish communications with the County EOC or Communications  
   Center, who will in turn notify the Emergency Services Executive Director  
   or his designee. 
  - Whenever an EOC is activated or activation of an EOC appears to be  
   imminent, the Incident Commander will in turn notify the N.C. Division of  
   Emergency Management and Western Branch office. 
 
  2.  Staffing 
  
  The Policy & Steering Control Group: 
 
  Under the direction of the Chairperson of the jurisdiction or his designee, this  
  group consists of the decision-makers of the jurisdiction and others as decided  
  by the Chairperson. This group is responsible for: 
  
  - The approval of policies and strategies pertinent to the emergency   
    operation. 
  - Provides leadership and decision making for implementation by the EOC. 
  - In coordination with the Information Officer, prepares statements for  
   release to the general public. 
  - Utilizing communications equipment available to the Policy & Steering  
   Group, the members will maintain a line of communication with their  
   respective administrators and County / Municipal elected officials. 
  - In cooperation with the EOC and the Operations Officer, maintains an  
   awareness of actions being taken in response to the emergency situation. 
  - In cooperation with the County Attorney, maintain a file with appropriate  
   ordinances, regulations, and policies relating to emergency incidents. 
  
    Personnel reporting to the County EOC will operate in one of the following  
  sections as assigned by the EOC IC: 
     - Command 
     - Operations 
     - Planning / Intelligence 
     - Logistics 
     - Finance / Administration 
 
IX.  CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT 
  
 A.  General 
  
 The possibility that emergency and disaster occurrences could disrupt government 
 functions necessitates that all levels of local government and their departments develop 
 and maintain procedures to ensure continuity of governmental services. These 
 procedures will designate who will be the decision-makers if an elected official or 
 department head is not available. 
  

  



[30] 
 

 B.  Line of Succession 
  
 The line of succession of the Board of County Commissioners proceeds from the 
 Chairman to the Vice-Chairman to members of the Board in accordance with County 
 policy. 
  
 Department / agency heads with emergency responsibilities are required to establish a 
 line of succession (Reference: Union County Alert & Notification List). 
  
 C.  EOC Staffing 
  
 EOC Staffing assignments allow for continuous operations. Selection and assignment of 
 the Command Staff and Section Chiefs of the General Staff is the responsibility of the 
 County EOC IC. Command Staff and Section Chiefs of the General Staff are responsible 
 for ensuring that alternate (backup) EOC staff is trained and available. Section Chiefs 
 are responsible for fleshing out their staffs based on the needs of the incident. 
  
 D.  Preservation of Vital Records 
  
 It is the responsibility of each governmental agency to ensure that all legal documents of 
 both a public and private nature be protected and preserved in accordance within 
 existing laws, statutes and ordinances. 
  
 Each department / agency is responsible for the preservation of essential records and 
 plans for the continuity of operations to ensure continued operational capabilities. 
 (Reference: Continuity of Operations Plan) 
  
 E.  Relocation of Government 
  
 If necessary, the County will relocate elements of the governing body to the EOC. 
  
 If the primary EOC is determined inoperable, the governing body will relocate to an 
 alternate EOC. 
  
 Relocation of local government is authorized under North Carolina General Statutes 
 (NCGS 162B). 
  
X.  AUTHORIZATION, AUTHORITIES, AND REFERENCES 
  
 A. Purpose 
  
 This section provides legal references and authorizations to support actions in the event 
 of an emergency or disaster situation. 
  
  



[31] 
 

 
 B. Situations and Assumptions 
  
  1.  Situation 
  
  Actions taken during emergency or disaster events require that legal guidelines  
  be followed to assure protection of the general public and to maintain law and  
  order in the County / Municipality. 
  
  Decisions implemented during times of an emergency will sometimes have a  
  negative economic impact on the County / Municipality or portions thereof. 
  
  Verbal and written mutual aid agreements exist between some agencies within  
  Union County and its municipalities. 
  
  2.  Assumptions 
  
  Some actions taken during emergency events may be unpopular with the general 
  public. 
  
  Actions implemented will be based on the safety and welfare of the overall  
  population, but may be unpopular with specific groups. 
  
 C.  Concept of Operations 
  

Selected references are on file in the County Emergency Services Agency. These 
include: 

  

 - G.S. 166-A (Emergency Management Act) 
 - Union County Emergency Management Ordinance 
 - Union County State of Emergency Ordinance 
 - Proclamation of a State of Emergency (including description of Imposition of  
  Prohibitions and Restrictions) 
 - Termination of a State of Emergency 
 - Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement 
  
 Complete information pertaining to Authorizations and Authorities will be maintained in a 
 reference book, accessible for reference during times of emergency. This reference will 
 include: 
  
 - NC Emergency Management Act, G.S. 166-A 
 - Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, Public Law 93- 
  288, as amended by Public Law 100-707 (the Stafford Act) 
 - Union County Emergency Management Ordinance 
 - Proclamation of a State of Emergency 
 - Mutual Aid Agreements for Fire and Rescue 
 - Mutual Aid Agreements with Municipalities 
 - Agreements with American Red Cross 
 - Agreements with County School System 



[32] 
 

 - North Carolina Oil Spill Act 
 - Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (SARA Title III) 
 - OSHA 1910.120 
 - FAA Authority (FAR) to close airspace over an emergency area 
 - Model Ordinance concerning Price Gouging 
 - Civil Defense Act of 1950, Public Law 81-920 
 - NC Governor’s Executive Order 73 (April 27, 1988) 
 - Local Emergency Planning Committee Bylaws and Roster 
 - Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement 
 
 



 

 

        
                 U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

                                                                                                                                                     FEMA Region IV 

                                                                                                                                            3003 Chamblee Tucker Road 

                                                                                                                                            Atlanta, GA 30341 

 

 

 

 

 

   

                                                                                January 6, 2015                                                         

 

Mr. Chris Crew 

State Hazard Mitigation Officer 

North Carolina Emergency Management Agency 

4238 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, North Carolina 27699 

 

Reference: Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan  

 

Dear Mr. Crew: 

 

This is to confirm that we have completed a Federal review of the draft Cabarrus Stanly Union 

Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for compliance with the Federal Hazard Mitigation Planning 

requirements contained in 44 CFR 201.6(b)-(d). We have determined that the Cabarrus Stanly 

Union Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan is compliant with Federal requirements, subject to 

formal community adoption. 

 

In order for our office to issue formal approval of the plan, Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional 

Hazard Mitigation Plan must submit adoption documentation and document that the final public 

meeting occurred. Upon submittal of these items to our office, we will issue formal approval of 

the Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan.  

 

Please have Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional submit a final copy of their Plan, without draft 

notations and track changes. 

 

For further information, please do not hesitate to contact Victor Geer, of the Hazard Mitigation 

Assistance Branch, at (770) 220-5659 or Linda L. Byers of my staff, at (770) 220-5498. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Robert E. Lowe, Chief  

Risk Analysis Branch 

Mitigation Division 

 

 



 
 

Feb. 5, 2015 
 
 
 
Good afternoon Union County Jurisdictions, 
 
On January 6, 2015, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) issued the attached letter stating that 
the Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan is approvable pending receipt of adoption 
documentation (Resolution) from participating jurisdictions and also documentation that a final public meeting 
took place. At that time, FEMA will issue a Final Approval letter once both requirements have been met.   
 
Each Union County jurisdiction that participated in the development of the plan will need to adopt the plan by 
Resolution.  A sample adoption Resolution has been provided for your convenience.  I would like a copy of the 
adopted Resolution for your jurisdiction forwarded to me no later than April 30, 2015. Please let me know if 
you have any further questions about the adoption process.   
 
Your jurisdiction will be notified about the final public meeting at a later date. 
 
Per both Federal and State legislation, a FEMA-approved hazard mitigation plan is required for communities to 
remain eligible for Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) funds following a Presidentially-declared 
disaster and for State Public Assistance (PA) funds following a State-declared disaster.   A hazard mitigation 
plan is also required for communities to remain eligible for future grant funds available through FEMA’s Pre-
Disaster Mitigation (PDM), and Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) programs. 
 
Thank you for your participation in this important planning effort and please let me know if you have any 
questions.   
 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Don Moye 
Union County 
Emergency Management Coordinator 
500 N. Main St. Suite 809 
Monroe, NC 28112 
Donald.moye@co.union.nc.us 
704-283-3575 
 

UNION COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
500 North Main Street • Monroe, NC 28112 • Phone (704) 283-3575 • Fax (704) 283-3716 
 



TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE CABARRUS STANLY UNION REGIONAL HAZARD 
MITIGATION PLAN 

 
R-2015-03 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs is vulnerable to an array of natural hazards that can 
cause loss of life and damages to public and private property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs desires to seek ways to mitigate the impact of such 
hazard risks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the development and implementation of a hazard mitigation plan can result in actions 
that reduce the long-term risk to life and property from natural hazards; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Mineral Springs Town Council to protect its citizens and property 
from the effects of natural hazards by preparing and maintaining a local hazard mitigation plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is also the intent of the Mineral Springs Town Council to fulfill its obligations under 
Chapter 166A of the North Carolina General Statutes, the North Carolina Emergency Management 
Act, and Section 322 of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 in order to remain eligible to 
receive state and federal assistance in the event of a declared disaster affecting Mineral Springs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mineral Springs, in coordination with Cabarrus County, Concord, Harrisburg, 
Kannapolis, Midland, Mount Pleasant, Stanly County, Albemarle, Badin, Locust, Misenheimer, New 
London, Norwood, Oakboro, Red Cross, Richfield, Stanfield, Union County, Fairview, Hemby Bridge, 
Indian Trail, Lake Park, Marshville, Marvin, Monroe, Stalling, Unionville, Waxhaw, Weddington, 
Wesley Chapel, and Wingate, has prepared a multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan with input 
from the appropriate local and state officials; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency have reviewed the Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for 
legislative compliance and have approved the plan pending the completion of local adoption 
procedures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of Mineral Springs hereby: 
 

1. Adopts the Cabarrus Stanly Union Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and  
 
2. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the 

proposed actions of the Plan. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 12th day of February, 2015. 

 
____________________________________ 

              Frederick Becker III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________   _ 
Vicky Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 



Public school accountability is a standard practice for North 
Carolina going back to the early 1990s. Through accountability 
reporting, North Carolinians can see how students are 
performing at the school, district and state levels.

The 2013-14 school year was the second year of the state’s 
READY initiative, which included a new Standard Course 
of Study in all subjects and grade levels, new student 
assessments aligned to the revised standards, and a new 
school accountability model. With such significant changes, 
one expects to see different results in the short and long term. 
In the past when the State Board of Education has raised 
English/language arts and mathematics standards, student 
performance has decreased. Experience also has shown that as 
teachers and students become acclimated to the more rigorous 
standards, academic performance trends upward. 

North Carolina typically releases school, district and state 
accountability results in August. North Carolina School Report 
Cards are usually released in October to provide more detailed 
information about student performance and other key data 
points such as school safety and teacher qualifications that 
are of interest to parents and the school community. 

Legislation (G.S. §115C-83.15) passed during the 2013 long 
session of the North Carolina General Assembly requires the 
inclusion of School Performance Grades as part of the North 
Carolina School Report Cards. When the North Carolina 
School Report Cards are released on Feb. 5, every traditional 
and public charter school will receive an A-F letter grade. 
Beginning in the 2015-16 school year, the North Carolina 
School Report Cards will be released in September and will 
incorporate both the School Performance Grades and state 
READY accountability results.

How are School Performance Grades Calculated?
As required by state legislation, the School Performance 
Grades are based 80 percent on the school’s achievement 
score (calculated using a composite method based on the 
sum of points earned by a school on all of the indicators 
measured for that school), and 20 percent on students’ 
academic growth (compares the actual performance of the 
school’s students to their expected performance based on 
their prior testing performance). There is an exception to 
this. If a school meets expected growth but inclusion of the 
school’s growth reduces the school’s performance score and 
grade, a school may choose to use the School Achievement 
Score only to calculate the performance score and grade. 
The final grade will be based on a 15-point scale this year, 
and a 10-point scale for future years, per legislation. 

Calculating a School’s Achievement Score
There are several indicators that will be used to calculate an 
elementary/middle school’s achievement score. K-8 schools 
will use the following indicators where applicable:
 • End-of-Grade Reading (grades 3-8)
 • End-of-Grade Math (grades 3-8)
 • End-of-Grade Science (grades 5 and 8)
 • End-of-Course Math I
 • End-of-Course Biology

When calculating the achievement score for each indicator, 
the percent of students who score at or above Level 3 on each 
assessment is divided by the total number of students for that 
indicator. To get the total School Achievement Score, the total 
number of proficient scores for all indicators are added and 
then divided by the total number of scores for all indicators. 

2014 READY ACCOUNTABILITY BACKGROUND BRIEF SUPPLEMENT: 
North Carolina School Performance Grades

NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION SERVICES DIVISION   |   JANUARY 2015



High schools will use the following indicators to calculate the 
achievement score:
 • End-of-Course Math I 
 • End-of-Course English II 
 • End-of-Course Biology 
 •  The ACT (percent of students who score 17 or above – 

UNC System’s minimum composite score requirement)
 •  ACT WorkKeys (percent of students who achieve a 

Silver Certificate or better)
 •  Math Course Rigor (percent of students who 

successfully complete Math III)
 •  4-year Graduation Rate (percent of students who 

graduate in four years)

Again, when calculating the achievement score for each 
indicator, the percent of students who meet the standard is 
divided by the total number of students for that indicator. 
To get the total School Achievement Score, the total number 
of scores or benchmarks meeting the standard for all 
indicators is added and then divided by the total number of 
scores or benchmarks for all indicators. 

Schools spanning both K-8 grades and high school will use 
the appropriate indicators accordingly. For example, a K-12 
school will use all of the indicators for K-8 and high school.

Calculating a School’s Growth Score
The school’s Growth Score is generated by using EVAAS 
(Education Value Added Assessment System). EVAAS is 
a value-added growth model that uses end-of-grade and 
end-of-course assessment data to measure the amount of 
growth groups of students make in a year. EVAAS calculates 
a composite index of growth, which determines the growth 
designation for the school: exceeds expected growth, meets 
expected growth or does not meet expected growth.

For the purposes of the School Performance Grades, the 
growth composite index also is converted to a 100-point scale, 
so that it can be combined with the School Achievement 
Score to create the overall School Performance Grade.

Calculating a School’s Performance Grade
As mentioned earlier, a school’s performance grade will be 
based 80 percent on the school’s achievement score and 
20 percent on students’ academic growth. The final grade 
will be based on the following 15-point scale for the 2013-14 
school year only. 

A = 85-100    B = 70-84    C = 55-69    D = 40-54    F = Less than 40

Beginning in 2014-15, a 10-point grading scale will be 
used. Following is an example for calculating a school’s 
performance grade.

Score Multiply 
by

Input for 
Final Grade

School Achievement 64.4 .80 51.5

Growth* 100.0 .20 20.0

Final Score** 72

Final Grade*** B

*  If a school meets expected growth but inclusion of the 
school’s growth score reduces the school’s performance 
score and grade, a school may choose to use the school 
achievement score only to calculate its performance score 
and grade.

**  For reporting purposes, the performance score is rounded 
to the nearest whole number.

***  K-8 schools will receive a separate score and grade for 
reading and math. This will include both achievement 
and growth measures in the same way as the overall 
School Performance Grade. Schools with no data 
available to calculate at least a School Achievement 
Score will not receive a School Performance Grade. 
An example would be K-2 schools. Additionally, 
alternative schools and other schools approved to use 
the Alternative Accountability Model will not receive a 
School Performance Grade, but these schools may elect 
to do so starting in 2014-15.

NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION SERVICES DIVISION   |   JANUARY 2015



Where Can I Find My School’s Performance Grade?
School Performance Grades are included on the North Carolina 
School Report Cards (www.ncreportcards.org) under the School 
Performance section. Each school’s academic performance 
page will include not only the school’s performance grade but 
also student performance on other key academic measures.

School Performance Grades are one component parents and 
the school community may use to determine how students 
in their school are doing in comparison to those in the 
district and across the state. It’s also important for parents to 
consider student performance on end-of-grade and end-of-
course assessments as well as the other indicators that the 
state uses to determine college and career readiness. 

Resources
School districts have a number of programs in place to support 
teachers and students as they become more familiar with the 
state’s standards and assessments. Contact your principal 
for more information on these initiatives. If you want more 
information on the state’s READY initiative or the NC School 
Report Cards, you may want to visit the following websites:
 •  School Performance Grades Accountability Brief – 

www.ncpublicschools.org/accountability/generalinfo
 • READY Initiative – www.ncpublicschools.org/ready
 • NC School Report Cards – www.ncreportcards.org
 •  North Carolina Standard Course of Study –  

www.ncpublicschools.org/curriculum

QUESTIONS?

School Performance Grades/READY Accountability – Tammy Howard, Accountability Services Division, 919.807.3787

NC School Report Card – Diane Dulaney, Enterprise Data and Reporting, 919.807.3690

Communications and General Information – Vanessa Jeter, Communication and Information Services Division, 919.807.3450

NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION SERVICES DIVISION   |   JANUARY 2015



























TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS 

REQUEST FOR ADDITION TO STATE MAINTAINED SECONDARY ROAD SYSTEM 
 

R-2015-02 
 
 
North Carolina 
County:  Union   
 
Road Description:  Saddleridge Drive (0.2 miles), Huntcliff Drive (0.4 miles) and Crofton 
Drive (0.5 miles) in the Copper Run Subdivision in the Town of Mineral Springs in Union 
County, North Carolina. 
 
Road Location: Off of SR1327 (Camp Ground Road, AKA Pleasant Grove Road) as 
indicated on the attached map. 
 
 WHEREAS, the attached petition has been filed with the Town Council of the Town of 
Mineral Springs in the County of Union requesting that the above described road(s), the location 
of which has been indicated in red on the attached map, be added to the Secondary Road 
System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Mineral Springs Town Council  is of the opinion that the above 
described road(s) should be added to the Secondary Road System, if the road(s) meet minimum 
standards and criteria established by the Division of Highways of the Department of 
Transportation for the addition of roads to the System; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs 
that the Division of Highways is hereby requested to review the above described road(s), and to 
take over the road(s) for maintenance if it meets established standards and criteria. 
 

ADOPTED this 12th day of February, 2015. 
 

              
         Frederick Becker, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
       
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, CZO 
 
CERTIFICATE 
 
The foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Town of Mineral Springs Town Council in the County of Union at a meeting on the 14th day 
of February, 2013. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal this the   day of    , 2013. 
 

Clerk, Town of Mineral Springs 
Official Seal             Union County, North Carolina 
 

      
Vicky A. Brooks 



























Vicky
Typewritten Text
X

Vicky
Typewritten Text

Vicky
Typewritten Text

Vicky
Typewritten Text
704-243-0505

Vicky
Typewritten Text
www.mineralspringsnc.com

Vicky
Typewritten Text
X

Vicky
Typewritten Text
Vicky Brooks

Vicky
Typewritten Text



 

 

 
 

MEMO 
To: Town Council 
 

From: Vicky Brooks 
 

Date: February 9, 2015 
 

Re: Agenda Item #11 - Discussion and Consideration of Additional Plantings at the Pump Station Property  
 
 

At the January 2015 meeting, the council requested that staff contact Union County Public Works to 
inquire as to whether or not they would be willing to allow the town to plant some additional 
shrubbery/trees on the pump station property on Highway 75. 

I contacted Mr. Michael Caldwell and was told that they don’t mind if the town adds some trees 
and/or shrubs (no formal submittal required); however, they would like to review anything that is 
proposed, because they don’t want large trees planted over the water service line, force main, gravity 
sewer line or underground electric line.  Trees with large root systems should not be planted 
anywhere on the site.  A sketch plan showing the preferred planting locations is attached to this 
memo. 

The county expressed that they want to be good neighbors and they don’t mind helping whenever 
they can, but they hope the town understands that they don’t want to be held responsible for 
maintaining/replacing trees and shrubs planted in excess of the landscaping ordinance of the town in 
the event that extra trees and shrubs fail to remain healthy.    

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CONSERVATION 
by 

DESIGN 

Town of Mineral Springs  
Zoning Administrator 
Vicky Brooks 
P O Box 600 
Mineral Springs, NC  28108 
704-289-5331 
704-243-1705 FAX 
msvickybrooks@aol.com 
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
 

mailto:msvickybrooks@aol.com
http://www.mineralspringsnc.com/









	021215 Town Council Agenda
	Town Council Members
	Town of Mineral Springs
	Mineral Springs Town Hall
	3506 S Potter Road ~ Mineral Springs
	Town Council
	Regular Meeting
	February 12, 2015 ~ 7:30 PM
	Agenda

	010815 Town Council Minutes DRAFT
	Town of Mineral Springs
	Town Hall
	3506 S. Potter Road
	Town Council
	Regular Meeting / Public Hearing
	January 8, 2015 ~ 7:30 PM
	Minutes Draft

	012015 Town Council Retreat Minutes DRAFT
	Town of Mineral Springs
	Rolling Hills Country Club
	2722 W Roosevelt Boulevard ~ Monroe, NC
	Town Council Retreat
	Special Meeting
	Joint Session with the Mineral Springs Planning Board
	January 20, 2015 ~ 8:00 AM
	Minutes Draft

	December_2014_Finance_Report
	R-2015-01 Resolution Honoring Robert Neill
	Union County Emergency Operations Basic Plan 2014
	R-2015-03 CSU Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution (UCLegal)
	RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE CABARRUS STANLY UNION REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN
	R-2015-03

	Agenda Item 8 021215
	CSU Ltr for Resol 
	CSU approval ltr APA-DR letter 1-6-2015
	R-2015-02 Request for DOT take over Copper Run Roads
	Urban Archery 2015
	021215 MEMO to tc agenda item 11
	Additional Landscaping
	steeplechase1
	14_12_to_print.pdf
	Union_County_Tax_Report_14_12
	141231_Tax_Reports_2004-2011
	Sheet1

	Unpaid Property Taxes - All




